ARCO LEASING LIMITED

August 16, 2024

To,

Corporate Relationship Department

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jesjeebhoy TOWErs,

Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001

Fax No. 022-22723121/3027/2039/2061 *
| Security Code: 611038, Security ID : ZARCOLEA

Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: ISIN —INE955801019

Sub: Notice of the 40" Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2023-24 of
Arco Leasing Limited (‘the Company’)

This is with reference to the provisions of Regulation 30 and 34 of SEBI {Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and our letter dated August 14, 2023 informing about
the 40" Annual General Meeting (‘AGM") of the Company scheduled to be held on Tuesday,
September: 10, 2024 at 11.00 am. (IST), in accordance, with the relevant circulars issued by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI. In this regard, we wish to inform the following:

Pursuant to the said circulars, AGM Notice and Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 are
being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email ids are registered with the
Company/Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA)/Depository Participant (‘DP’). These documents are
also available on the Company's website at www arcoleasing.com.

The Company has provided the facility to its members to cast their vote electronically, through the
remote e-Voting facility (before the AGM), on all the resolutions set out in the AGM Notice to the
Members, who are holding shares on the Cut-off date i.e. September 3, 2024. The remote e-voting
will commence at Saturday, September 7. 2024 (09.00 a.m. IST) and end on Monday, September
g 2024 (0500 pm. IST). Detailed instructions for registering email address(s) and
e-voting/attendance at the AGM are given in the AGM Natice.

The AGM Notice and Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 are enclosed herewith,
This is for your information and records.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For ARCO LEASING LIMITED P
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RAJENDRA MAHAVIRPRASAD RUIA

WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
DIN: 01300823

REPLY TO, _ TEL:(51-22) 6683 6311-3
PLOT NO. 123, STREET MO, 17 ; 2821 7222-56
M.LD.G. (MAROL), FAX : (91-22) 2836 1760
ANDHERI (E}, MUMBAI — 400 083 E-mail
MDA -arcoleasinglid@gmail.com

CIN :L65910MH1984PLCO31857
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ARCO LEASING LIMITED

Regd. Office: Flot No. 123, Street No 17, MIDC Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400093,
Tel: 022 28217222, Fax. 022-28361760, Email id: arcoleasingltd@gmail.com
CIN:- L65910MAH1984PLCO31957, Website: www.arcoleasing. com

NOTICE
MOTICE is hereby given that the 40" Annual General Meeting of the members of ARCD
LEASING LIMITED (“the Company”) will be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2024 at 11.00
a.m. [I5T) at the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 123, Street No. 17, MIDC
Marol, Andheri (E), Mumkbai - 400 093, Maharashtra, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024,

To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated Audited Financial
Staternents of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, together
with the Report(s) of the Directors and Auditors thereon and, in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without madification(s), the following
resolutions as an Ordinary Resolutions -

Al “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered
and adopted.”

B) "RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for

the financial year ended March 21, 2024 and the report of Auditors thereon, as
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. Re-appointment of Director, retiring by rotation, Mr. Rajendra Mahavirprasad
Ruia (DIN 01300823}

Ta appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajendra Mahavirprasad Ruia {DIN 01300823)

who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment and, in
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajendra Mahavirprasad Ruia
{DIN 01300823), whao retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appainted
as a Director of the Company.”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Appointment of Mrs. Arpita loshi [DIN 10725685) as Non-Executive Independent
Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with ar without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:



“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 read
with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act”)
and the Companies {Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the
applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the SEBI Listing Regulations™) {including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the Nomination and
Remuneration policy of the Company and based and upon the recommendation of the
Momination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mrs. Arpita loshi
(DIN 10725685), who was appointed as an Additional Women Director designated as Non-
Executive, Independent Director, with effect from August 5, 2024 in terms of Section 161
of the Act and who is eligible for appointment and meets the criteria for independence as
provided under Section 1439(6] of the Act along with the Rules made thereunder and
Regulation 16{1)(h) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and who has submitted a declaration
to that effect, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under
Section 160 of the Act from a Member proposing her candidature for office of Director,
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire
by rotation, for a first term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from August 5, 2024
to August 4, 2029, on the terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement
pursuant to Section 102 of the Act annexed to this Motice;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient
to give effect to this Resolution, without being required to seek any further consent or
approval of the Members of the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as

may be necessary, proper, and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

BY AMD ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAJEMDRA RUIA NARENDRA RUIA
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIM: 01300823 DIN: 01228312

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2024

Regd. Office:

Flot Mo, 123, Street No. 17, MIDC, Marol,
Andheri [E}, Mumbai — 400 023, Maharashtra
Tal: 022 28217222

Fax: 022 — 28361760

Email id: arcoleasingltdi@gmail.com
Wehbsite; www.arcoleasing.com




NOTES:

The Relevant details of the Director seeking re-appointment, pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
QObligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 ('Listing
Regulations') and as required under Secretarial Standards - 2 on General
Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided
in Annexure |

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AMD WVOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. Praxies in order to be effective, must be received by the Company
not less than 48 hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of
companies, societies, partnership firms, etc. must be supported by appropriate
resolution/ authority, as applicable, issued on behalf of the nominating
organization. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint
holder wheo is higher in order of names will be entitled to vote. A Proxy Form is
enclosed herewith.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50
AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAM 10 PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. HOWEVER, A MENMBER HOLDING
MORE THAN 102, OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSOMN AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON
SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSOMN OR MEM BER.

The Register of Members of the Company and Transfer Books thereof will be
closed from September 4, 2024 to September 10, 2024 (both days inclusive).

E-voting facility to all members has been provided through the e-voling
platform of Bigshare Services Private Limited and the Company has appainted
CS Priyanka Oka, Practicing Company Secretary, as Scrutinizer for the e-voting
process. Instructions and manner of the process have been detailed in the para
7 below. The Scrutinizer will make a report to the Chairman of the Company,
of the votes cast in favour and against and the results on the resolutions
alongwith the scrutinizer's report will be available on the website of the
Company within two working days of the same being passed.

The shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members after giving
effect to all valid share transfers lodged with the Company on or before
September 3, 2024 shall be entitled to participate in e-voting/kallot at the
AGM. Members and all other concerned are requested to lodge transfer deeds,
change of address communication, mandates (if any) with the Company's
Share Transfer Agents viz. Bigshare Services Pwt. Ltd., -3 Ansa Industrial
Estate, Saki Vihar Road Sakinaka, Mumbai 400072, Maharashtra.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and the Securities and Exchange Board
of India {(“SEBI") Circular dated lanuary 5, 2023, Notice of the AGM along with
the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those
Members whose email address is registered with the Company / Registrar and
Transfer Agent / Depository Participants / Depositories. Members may note



10.

that the Motice and Annual Report 2023-24 will also be available on the
Company’s website www.arcoleasing.com and website of the Stock Exchange,
i.e., BSE Limited at www _bseindia.com and on the website of Bigshare Services
Private Limited. Company’s web-link on the above will also be provided in
advertisement being published in newspaper having wide circulation in India
(English Language) and local newspaper (Marathi Language).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as
amended} and Regulation 44 of SEB| ([Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 [as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April
08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing Tacility of
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at
the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement
with Bigshare Services Private Limited for facilitating voting through electronic
means, as the authorized e-\Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of
the AGM will be provided by Bigshare Services Private Limited.

I line with the Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.arcoleasing.com. The Motice can also be accessed
from the websites of the 5tock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at
wywnw bseindia.com. The AGM MNotice is also disseminated on the website of
Bigshare Services Private Limited [“Bigshare”) {agency for providing the
Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) ie.

https:/fivote.bigshareonline.com.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are
requested to register their email address for receiving all communication
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company
electronically.



THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

The voting period begins on Saturday, September 7, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. {IST) and
ends on Monday, September 9, 2024 till 5.00 p.m. [IST). During this period
shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date [record date) of September 3, 2024
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by
Bigshare for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be
entitled to vote at the meeting venue.,

Pursuant to SEBI Circular Mo. SEBIfHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/Pf2020/242 dated
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, listed
entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its sharehaolders, in
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional sharehalders/retail shareholders is

at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-
voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on varicus
ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease
and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In_terms of SEBI circular _no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated

December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are advised to update their mohile humber and email Id in their

demat accounts in order to access e-\oting facili




1. PURSUANT TO ABOVE SAID SEBI CIRCULAR, LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING FOR
INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE 15 GIVEN

BELOWY:
Type of Login Method
shareholder
5

1) Users who have apted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
\ndividual through their existing user id and password, Option will be made
Shareholder available to reach e-Voting page without any  further
s holding authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi/Easiest is
securities in hitps:/fweb cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/lagin - or  visit
Demat CDsL website www . cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New
mode with System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi username
CDSL & password.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Yoling oplion for eligible companies where the evoling is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoling option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you will be re-
directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remaote
e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. BIGSHARE,
sa that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers” website
directly.

31 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option 1o register is
available at
https:/fweb. cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegist

ration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by

providing Demat Account Number and PAN Mo. from a link
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/Evatinglogin The system

will authenticate the user by sending OTF on registered Mohile &
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where
the evoting is in progress, and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and
yvou will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote
during the remote e-voting period.




Individual
Shareholder
s holding
securities in
demat
mode with
MSDL

1)

2]

3

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https://eservices nsdl.com either on a Personal

Computer or on a mokile. Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS section. & new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voling services. Click on
"Access 1o e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voling page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voling period.
If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option Lo register
is available at hilps://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online
for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://feservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/|deasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: hitps://fwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile, Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, dick on the icon "Login®™ which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User 1D {i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to M5DL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voling page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be
redirected to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voling period.

Individual
Shareholder
s [holding
securities in
demnat
made) login
through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your Depository Participant registered with
M5DL/COSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful lagin, vou will be
able to see e-\Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option,
you will be redirected te NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voling service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised
to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovernentioned
website.




Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in_demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with CDSL can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-
43,

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

2. LOGIN METHCD FOR E-VOTIMG FOR SHAREHOLDER OTHER THAN INDIVIDUAL
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN DEMAT MODE & PHYSICAL MODE 15
GIVEN BELOW:

* You are requested to launch  the URL on  internet  browser:
hitps./fivole.bigshareonline.com

*  Click on “LOGIN" button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN' section to Login on E-Voting

Platform.

" Please enter you 'USER ID* [User id description is given below) and "‘PASSWORD’
which is shared separately on yvou register email id,

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit
Beneficiary ID as user id,

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8
Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 1D as user id.

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event Mo + Folio
Mumber registered with the Company as userid.

Note If you hove not received any user id or password please email from your
registered emaif id ar cantact i-vate helpdesk team. (Email id ond cantact number
are mentioned in helpdesk section).

»  Clickon | AM NOT A ROBOT [CAPTCHA) option and login,

MNOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to
e-\oting system of https://ivote bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier

event of any company then they can use their existing user id and password to
login.

v |f you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN' under ‘INVESTCR LOGIN' tab
and then Click on ‘Forgot your password?



Enter "User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT {CAPTCHA)
option and click on 'Reset’.

{In case a sharehalder is hoving valid email address, Passward will be sent ta his /
her registered e-mall address).

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal:

After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS {CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS' option on investor
portal.

Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown optian.

Click on *“VOTE NOW" option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner
of the page.

Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option "IN FAVOUR", "NOT IN FAVOUR"
or “ABSTAIN" and click on "SUBMIT VOTE". A confirmation box will be displayed.
Click “OK” to confirm, else "CANCEL" to maodify. Once you confirm, you will not be
allowed to maodify your vote.

Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen
and also you will receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting
period, members can login any number of times till they have voted on the
resolution({s). Once wvote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed
subsequently.

Shareholder can "CHANGE PASSWORD” or "VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE" under
“PROFILE” option on investar portal.

3. CUSTODIAN REGISTRATION PROCESS FOR I-VOTE E-VOTING WEBSITE:

You are requested to launch  the URL on  internet  browser:
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com

Click on “REGISTER"” under "CUSTODIAN LOGIN", to register yourself on Bigshare
i-Vote e-\Voting Platform.

Enter all required details and submit.

After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and
password will be sent via email on your registered email id”.

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of
hitps.//ivole. bisshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any
company then they can use their existing vser id and password to login.

If you have forgotten the password: Click on 'LOGIN® under "CUSTODIAN LOGIN
tab and further Click on ‘Forgot your password?

Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT {CAPTCHA)
option and click on ‘RESET,

{in case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her
registered e-mail address).

Voting method for Custodian en i-Vote E-voting portal:

After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.



Investor Mapping:

" First you need to map the investor with your user 1D under “DOCUMENTS” option

on custodian portal.

o Click on "DOCUMENT TYPE" dropdown option and select document type
power of attorney (POA),
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney

(POA) or board resolution for respective investor and click on "UPLOAD”,

Mote: The power of attorney [POA) or board resolution has to be named as

the “InvestorlD.pdf”’ (Mention Demat account number as Investor D)
o Yourinwvestor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.

Investor vote File Upload:

* To cast your vote select “WOTE FILE UPLOAD" aption from left hand side menu on

custodian portal.

» Select the Event under dropdewn option,

*  Download sample vating file and enter relevant details as required and upload the
sarme file under upload document option by clicking on “UPLCAD". Confirmation

message will be displayed on the screen and also you can check the file status on

display {Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently).

» Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under

“PROFILE" option on custodian portal,

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting:

Login type

Helpdesk details

Shareholder’s other than individual
shareholders holding shares in
Demat mode & Physical mode.

In case shareholders/ investor have any
gueries regarding E-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQS ) and i-
Vote e-Voting module available at
hitps/fivote.bigshareonline.com, under

download section or you can email us to
iwvote@bigshareonline.com or call us at; 1800

2254 22,




PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No.,
Mame of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate [front and
back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & maobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant [(DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mohile
no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory
while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

In case shareholders/ investors have any gueries regarding E-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting module available at
https://ivote bigshareonline.com , under download section or you c¢an email us to
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22 Alternatively, the Members may
also write an e-mail to the Company at arcoleasingltd@gmail.com for any gqueries/
information.




Explanatory statement pursuant to provisions 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

ITEM No. 3: APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

In a dynamic global business environment, the Company is evaluating growth
apportunities to create a greater value for the stakeholders. Accordingly, as part of
Company’s basic intent to have adeguate mix of individuals having diverse expertise, on
the Board of Directors commensurate with the size and operations of the Company, Mrs.
Arpita Aditya Joshi (DIN : 10725685) has been appointed as an Additional Woman
Independent Director by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of
Momination and Remuneration Committee, for a term commencing from August 5, 2024
till August 4, 2029,

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs, Arpita Aditya Joshi fulfils the conditions specified in the
Act and the rules made thereunder for appointment as an Independent Director and that
she is an independent of the management. Consent to act as Director in Form DIR-2
pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies {Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules,
2014 intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not disgualified under Section 164(2) of
the Act and: a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence as provided under
Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b} of the
Listing Regulations has been received from Mrs. Joshi.

Further, Mrs. Joshi has confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to
discharge her duties as an Independent Director of the Company. Mrs. loshi has confirmed
that she is in compliance with Rules (1) and &[2) of the Companies [Appaintment and
Cualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to her registration with the data bank
of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. Further
Mrs. Joshi has confirmed that, she had not been a partner of a firm that had transactions
during last three financial years with Arco Leasing Limited ["the Company™) amounting to
ten percent or more of its gross turnowver,

In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mrs. Arpita Aditya loshi (DIN : 107256885) has been
appointed as an Additional Woman Independent Director. Further, pursuant to Regulation
17{1C) of Listing Regulations, the appointment of a Director on the Board of Directors shall
be approved by the shareholders at the next general meeting or within a time period of
three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. Therefore, this
resalution is being proposed to be passed at this annual general meeting of the Company.

Accordingly, the approval of shareholders is being sought for appointment of Mrs. Joshi as

an Independent Director, for a term commencing from August §, 2024 to August 4, 2029,
and during her tenure, she shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Since, in terms of Regulation 25(24) of the Listing Regulations, appointment of Mrs. Joshi
requires approval of Members of the Company by way of a Special resolution. The Board
of Directors recommend the resolution as set out in item no. 3 for approval of the
shareholders as Special Resolution.

Mone of the Directars or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives,
other than Mrs. loshi and her relatives, are in any way concerned or interested in the

resolution as set out at ltem no. 3 of this Notice.

The letter of appointment of Mrs. Joshi setting out the terms and conditions of



appointment is being made available far inspection of the shareholders.

Brief profile and other particulars, required as per Regulation 36 of 5EBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are as follows:

Name, Age and brief resume of
the Director

Appointment of Mrs. Arpita Aditya Joshi (DIM:
10725685) as an Additional Woman Director
designated as Non-Executive, Independent Director

Age: 40 Years

Nature of expertise in specific
functional areas

Expert areas of Mrs. loshi cover Corporate Laws. She
is a qualified Company Secretary and also Commerce
and Law Graduate. She is a fellow member of
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

The skills and capabilities
required for the role and the
manner in which the proposed
pearsen meets such
reguirements

Mrs. loshi possesses over 14 years of experience in
the fields of Company Law and handling compliances
under various Corporate Laws, listing agreement;
Rights lssues, Bonus Issues, Preferential Allotments,
Mergers & De-mergers of Listed and Unlisted
Companies,

Mrs. loshi has worked with leading practicing
Company secretaries Firms and listed Companies like
Indoce Remedies Limited, a leading pharmaceutical
company. Mrs. loshi has also worked as a Company
Secretary of Camlin Fine Sciences Limited. Presently,
Mrs. Joshi is working as a practicing Company
Secretary, in the field of compliances and
consultancy Services, to various unlisted public and
private Companies.

Based on her skills, experience, expertise in specific
functional areas which are beneficial to the
Company, the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board has recommended the
appointment of Mrs. loshi as Woman Independent
Director pursuant to the provisions of sections 149
and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Date of First appointment on
the Board & Terms &
Conditions of Appointment B
Remuneration details

As per the Resolution set out in the ltem No. 2 of the
Motice read with Explanatory Statement.

She shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for
attending Board or Committee Meetings of the
Company or for any other purpose as may be decided
by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for
participating in the Board andfor
meetings of the Company.

committee

Mo, of Board meetings | 2{Two) on August 5, 2024 and August 14, 2024
attended
Directorship held in  other | Nil

companies [excluding foreign




companies &  section 8
companies):

Listed entities from which the | Nil
persen has resigned in the past
threa years

Membership/ Chairmanships | Nil
of Audit Committee and

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee of other public
Companies

Inter-se Relationship hetween | Mot Applicable
Directors:

Me. of Shares held in the | Nil
Company {(by Director himself,
including sharehelding as a
beneficial owner, singly or
jointly as first holder) as on
lune 30, 2024.

Listed Entities frem which the | Nil
Director has resigned in the
past three years.

BY AND CN BEHALF CF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAJENDRA RUIA NARENDRA RUIA
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 01300823 DIN: 01228312

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2024

Regd. Office:

Flot Mo, 123, 5treet Mo, 17, MIDC, Marol,
Andheri [E}, Mumbai — 400 033, Maharashtra
Tel: 022 28217222

Fax: 022 — 28361760

Email id: arcoleasingltdi@gmail.com

Website: www arcoleasing.com




Annexure

Information required as per 356{3) of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, in respect of the appointment or re-appointment of Directors at the Annual
General Meeting:

Mame Rajendra Mahavirprasad Ruia
DIN 01300823
bge &7 Years
Date of Birth January 9, 1957
Date of Appointment February 1, 1984
Qualification/ Expertise in specific B5C in Chemistry and Physics

functional areas

Managing Director of &rco Group
Brief Resume

Relationship with any Directoris} of the Marendra Ruia — Brother
Company
Number of Board Meetings attended Faur (4]

during fy. 2023-24
Names of listed entities in which the -
persan also holds the directorship and
the membership of Committees of the

board

Number of Shares held in the Company 16,085

List of Directorships held in ather Arco Electro Technologies Private Limited
companies®

*Based on disclosures received from the respective Directors,

BY AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAIENDRA RUIA NARENDRA RUIA
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN: 01300823 DIN: 01228312

Place: Mumhbai
Date: August 14, 2024

Regd. Office:

Plot No. 123, Street Mo, 17, MIDC, Marol,
Andheri {E}, Mumbai — 400 093, Maharashtra
Tel: 022 28217222

Fax: 022 — 28361760

Email id: arcoleasingltd @gmail.cam
Wehsite: www arcoleasing.com




ROUTE MAP

tc the Venue of 40" Annual General Meeting of ARCO LEASING LIMITED on Tuesday
September 10, 2024,
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Venue: Plot No. 123, Street No. 17, MIDC, Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai — 400093
(Bus No.: 434 f 545Ltd /496 Ltd)

Mote: Map given above is indicative and distance is approximate.




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

Regd. Office: Flot No. 123, Street No 17, MIDC Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400093,
Tel: 022 28217222, Fax. 022-28361760, Email id: arcoleasingltd@gmail.com
CIN:- L65910MAH1984PLCO31957, Website: www.arcoleasing. com

ATTENDAMCE SLIP

Regd. Folio/DP ID and Client ID

Mumber of Shares held

Mame and Address of the
Memker

Mame and Address of the
Proxy holder

| hereby recard my presence at the 40" Annual General Meeting of Arco Leasing Limited
to be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2024 at 11.00 a.m. (I5T) at Plot No. 123, Street No.
17, MIDC, Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400093, Maharashtra.

Signature of the Member/Proxy Present:

Note:

1. Member/Proxy holder who wish to attend the Meeting must bring the duly signed
Attendance Slip to the Meeting and handover at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.

2. Please read the instructions printed under the MNote No. i. to the Notice of the 40t
Annual General Meeting. The e-voting period starts from Saturday, September 7,
2024 at 9.00 a.m. {IST) and ends on Monday, September 9, 2024 at 5.00 p.m. [IST).
The voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare Services Private Limited for voting
thereafter,



ARCO LEASING LIMITED

Regd. Office: Flot No. 123, Street No 17, MIDEC Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400093,
Tel: 022 38317222, Fax: 022-28361760, Email id: arcoleasingltd@egmail.com
CIN:- L65910MH1984PLCA31957, Wehsite: www arcoleasing cam

PROXY FORM
FORM MGT-11
40t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING — TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19{3) of the Companies
[Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

MName of the Member(s)
Registered Address

Email ID
Folio Nof DP 1D and Client
1D

I/'We, being the member({s) of Arco Leasing Limited holding ................... shares, hereby
appoint

Mame
Address

Email id

Signature

or failing him/her

Mame
Address

Email id
ﬁgna‘tu re

ar failing him/her

Mame
Address

Email id
Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (an a poll) for me/us and on my/four behalf at the 40
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Tuesday, September 10, 2024
at 11.00 a.rm. at Plot No. 123, Street No 17, MIDC Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai — 400093,



Maharashtra and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

Resolution Resolution
Number
1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated

Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2024, together with the Report(s) of the Directors and Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajendra Mahavirprasad Ruia [DIN

01300823) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.

3 Appointment of Mrs. Arpita Joshi (DIN 10725685) as Independent Director.
Signed this day of Affix . 2024,
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of the Signature of Proxy Holder{s}

Shareholder

Mote:

This form of proxy in arder to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed
and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.



DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
Dear Members,

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the 40" Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
(Standalone & Consolidated) of ARCO LEASING LIMITED, for the financial year ended March 31,
2024,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance far the year ended 31" March 2024 is summarized below:

[Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars Financial Results Financial Results
(Standalone] (Consolidated]
For the year ended as at For the year ended as at
31* March, 31* March, 2023 31 March, 31 March,
2024 2024 2023
Total Revenue 1.28 20.13 16.13 22.20
Total Expenses 13.60 11.49 55.15 12 B&
Profitf[Loss) « efore ax {12.33) 2.64 {39.03) 9.34
Tax Expense (Net} - 210 -- 228
Profit f[Loss) After Tax (12.33) 6.54 (39.03) 7.06
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) {5.13} 272 {16.25} 294

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the Company has failed to generate a revenue as compared to Rs.19
Lakhs, in the previous year which led ta reduction in the overall incame of the Company to Rs. 1.28
Lakhs as compared to Rs. 20.13 lakhs of previous year.,

Total expenditure of the Company was increased to Rs.13.60 Lakhs as compared to 11.49 lakhs in
the previaus year which has resulted in the lasses of Rs.12.33 Lakhs (hefore tax) to the Company
during the financial year of 2023-24,

Similarly, an Consolidated basis, total income far the financial year under review was reduced to Rs.
16.13 Lakhs as compared to Bs.22.20 Lakhs of previous year. It was mainly reduced due to income
from operations of the holding Campany which led to losses of Rs.39.03 Lakhs as compared to profits
of Rs.9.34 Lakhs,

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company,
between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

DIVIDEND

To conzerve resources far future, your Directors’ do not recammend any dividend for the financial
year under review. In terms of Begulation 434 of the SEBI {LODE), Regulations 2015, ("the
Regulations”), including amendments thereunder, the Dividend Distribution Policy shall not be
applicable to the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Directors do not propose to transfer any amount ta Reserve.

MAIOR EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR



MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF REPORT

There are na material changes and commitments affecting the financial pasition of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this report.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
The Company has not undergone any change in the nature of business during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the Campany is R<.6,00,00,000/- {Rupees Six crores) which comprises
of 20,00,000 {Twenty Lakhs} equity shares of Rs. 10/- {Rupees Ten only} each and 4,00,000 {Four
Lakhs} Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, 100/- {Rupees One Hundred) each.

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital is Rs.24,00,700/- (Rupees Twenty Four Lakhs Seven Hundred)
divided into 2,40,070 {Two Lakh Forty Thousand and Seventy} equity shares of Rs.10/- {Rupees Ten}
each and Paid-up Preference Share Capital is Rs.2,50,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores Fifty Lakhs anly)
as an March 31, 2024,

During the year under review, the Campany has not issued shares or convertible securitiez ar shares
with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity or warrants as an
March 31, 2024 except 2,50,000 0.01% Unsecured MNon-convertible Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each. The said shares were issued and allotted to Essar Steel Metal
Trading Limited on private placement basis. However, the said Preference Shares were not listed an
any Stock Exchange, The implementation of corporate action was delayed due to various technical
difficulties and same is in the process.

LISTING FEES

Equity Shares of your Company are listed on BSE Limited. Your Company has paid the required listing
fees to Stock Exchange.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public under Chapter V of the Companies Act,
2013, during the financial year under review,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

The Management Discussian and Analysis as required under the Listing Regulations forms an integral
part of this report and is presented separately. It gives details of the overall industry structure,
econamic developments, perfarmance and state of affairs of your Campany’s, and their adequacy,
risk management systems and other material developments during the Financial Year 2023-24,

CIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprised of Qne Executive Directar, One Nan-Executive Director
and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors,

The Board is well diversified and consists of one Women Director, with effect from August &, 2024,
Henece, the camposition af the Board is in accardance with the provisions of Section 149 af the Act
and Repulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with an appropriate combination of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors with effect from August 5, 2024,

As on the date of this report following is the Baard Structure of the Campany -

5l. No. MName of the DIN/PAN Designation Executive/Non-
Director/KMP Executive




Mr, Rajendra 01300823 Whale Time Executive
Mahavirprasad Ruia Director Director
hr, Marendra (1228312 Director Man Executive
Mahavir Rula Director
Mr. Srikar Gopalrao 02116323 Independent Mon Executive
Kowlikar Director Director
Mrs. Arpita  Aditya 10725685 Waoman Man Executive
Jozhi Independent Director
Director
M, Marendra AMBPRIGBTAC Chief Financial -—
Mahavir Ruia Officer {CFO)

Appointment, Re-appointment and Resignation of Directors

Section 152 of the Act pravides that unless the Articles of Association provide for retirement of all
directors at every Annual General Meeting {"AGMW"), not less than two-third of the total number of
directors of a public company {excluding the Independent Directars) shall be persans whase period
of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation, of which one-third are liable
to retire by rotation.

Accardingly, Mr. Rajendra Mahavirprasad Ruia {DIN 01300823) Director of the company, is liable to
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, heing eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment pursuant to Section 152 of the Act. Your Board of Directors recommend her re-
appointment.

A Profile of Mr. Ruia, as required by Regulation 36{3) of the LODR is given in the MNotice convening
the forthcoming AGHM.

MWr. Kaushik Shah (DIN 01396342} has stepped down from the position of Independent Director due
to expiry of his term on May 23, 2024, The board toak naote of the same and places on record their
appreciation for the assistance and puidance provided by Mr. Shah during his tenure as Director of
the Campany.

MW=, Richa Goyal was appointed as the Additional Woman Director of the Company at the Board
hMeeting held on May 25, 2023. However, due to her persanal difficulties she was unable to provide
required documents for filling statutory form with Ministry of corporate Affairs with respect to her
appointment.

The Board has appointed Mrs, Arpita Joshi {DIN 10725885) as the Woman Director on the Board of
the Company w.e f. August 5, 2024, The Board 1= of the apinion that Mrs. Arpita Jashiis a person af
integrity, expertise, and competent experience and proficiency to serve the Company as an
independent director that can strengthen the overall composition of the Board.

Appointment and Resignation of Key Managerial Person [KMP)

During the financial year 2023-24, Ms, Renu Vyas was appointed as Company Secretary and
Campliance Officer of the Company with effect from May 25, 2023, However, Ms. Vyas has tendered
her resignation fram the position of Company Secretary and Campliance Officer of the Cam pany with
effect from May 23, 2024 in order to pursue new career opportunities outside the Company. The
Board accepted the resignation and placed on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable
contributions made by Ms. Vyas during her association with the Company as a Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer.

Further, during the year under review, the non-executive director of the company had no
transactions with the company, even the payment of sitting fees, commission and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee of the
Campany.



During the year, there were no changes in the Directars/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
other than reported above.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 149(7} of the Act and Begulation 25{2} of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 143{6} of the Act and Regulations 16{1Kb) of the 5EB! {Listing Cbligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his/her ability to
discharge his/ her duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external
influence,

In compliance with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
all the Independent Directors (“IDD") of the Company have registered themselves with the ndia
Institute of Carporate Affairs {IICA}, Manesar, to include their names in the databank of Independent
Directors, They have also confirmed that they will appear for the online proficiency test within a
period of one year, wherever applicable. (if required/if any)

Further, there has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as IDDs of the
Campany.

Declaration by the Company

Mone of the Directors of the Company are disqualified fram heing appointed as Directors as spercified
in Section 154{2} of the Act read with Bule 14 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors}) Rules, 2014,

MANAGING DIRECTOR/DIRECTCOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER {CFO) CERTIFICATE

In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the certificate, as prescribed in Part B of Schedule || of the
said Regulations, has been obtained from Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer, for the
Financial Year 2023-24 with regard to the Financial Statements and other matters. The said
Certificate forms part of this Beport,

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEES

During the year under review, the compnsition of different Committees of your Board of Directars is
given hereunder:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility of overseeing the guality and integrity of
the accounting, auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal
and regulatory requirements. The terms of reference of Audit Committee cover the areas mentioned
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The details of composition, meetings and attendance of the Meetings of the Audit Committee are as
under:-.

5. Mo Name Designation No. of Meetings
Held Artended
1 M r. Srikar Gopalrao Kowlikar Chairman and 4 4
Member
2 Mr. Narendra Ruia Member 4 4
3 Mr. Kaushik Shah* Member 4 4




*Mr. Shah is ceased to an Independent Director w.e.f. Auguse 5, 2024,

There has been no instance where the Board of Directors had not accepted any recommendation of
the Audit Committee,

The Audit Committee was reconstituted post resignation of Mr. Kaushilk Shah (DIN 01396342}, Mrs.
Arpita Ioshi (DN 10725685} has become a member of Audit Committee with effect from August 5,
2024,

NOMINATION 8 REMUNARATION COMMITTEE

The Board has a Nomination and Remuneration policy, which is generally in line with the existing
industry practice and applicable laws. The policy has been displayed on the Company’s website viz.

".".."l.l'u"l.l'u'.[']rli'.l.'lll'!['].‘iiI'Iﬁ.[:l.'ll'l'l

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assist the Board in overseeing the methad, criteria
and guantum of compensation for directors and senior management based on their performance
and defined assessment criteifa. The Committee formulates the criteria for evaluation af the
performance of Independent Directors & the Board of Directors; identifying the persons who are
gualified to become directors, and wha may be appainted in senior management and recommend
to the Board their appointment and removal. The terms of the reference of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee covers the areas mentioned under section 178 of the Campanies Act, 2013

The details of composition, of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

Sr. Name Designation No of Meetings

No Held Attended

1 Mi. Srikar Gopalrao Chairiman and 2 2
Kowlikar Memhber

2 Mr. Rajendra Ruia Memhber 2 2

3 Mr. Kaushik Shah* Member 2 2

*Mr. Shah is ceased ta be an Independent Directar w.e f. August 5, 2024

The Namination and Remuneration Committee was recanstituted on resignation of Mr. Kaushik
Shah. Mrs. Arpita Joshi {DIM 10725685} has become a member of Momination and Remuneration
Cammittee with effect from August 5, 2024,

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIF COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is not constituted by the Company as there are less than
One Thousand stakeholders of the Company and the provisions of section 178 of the Arct and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable ta the Company.

The Company has duly appointed Share Transfer Agent {R&T Agent) for servicing the shareholders
holding shares in physical aor dematerialised farm. All requests for dematerialisation of shares are
likewise processed and confirmations thereof are communicated to the investors within the
prescribed time,

During the year under review, no Investor complaints were pending.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS

The Board has established a comprehensive process to evaluate the performance of the Board, its
eommittess and of individual directors. The perfarmance evaluation matrix defining the criteria of
evaluation for each of the above has been put in place. The performance evaluation of the
Independent Directors was carried out by the other members of the Board {excluding the Director
being evaluated}.



A meeting of the Independent Directors was held on January 24, 2024 to review the performance of
Mon-Independent Directois and the Board as a whole. The Chairman of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee had updated the other members of the Board about the outcome of the
evaluation process.,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under clause (c) of sub-section {3} of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013, Directors, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, state that —

(i} in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Campany at the end of the financial year and of the lnss of the Company
far the yvear ended on that period;

(iii} the directars had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accardance with the provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(v} the directors had prepared the annual accounts oin a going concern basis;

(v) the directors had laid down internal financial cantrals to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi} the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS
There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the statutory auditors
to report to the Audit Committee and / or Board under section 143{12) of the Act and rules framed

thereunder.

MATERIAL SUBSIDUARY

Ansu Trade & Fiscals Private Limited cantinue to be the wholly owned subsidiary of Arco Leasing
Lirmited.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March, 2024 as per
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule ¥ of Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014.

FAMILIARIZTION/ ORIENTATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors attend a Familiarization / QOrientation Program as being inducted by the
Boaid.

The Company had devised the detailed framework for the Familiarization Program and also approved
the format of the formal letter of appointment as required to be given to the Independent Directors,
outlining their role, function, duties and responsibilities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes framed a
policy for zelection, appointment and remuneration of Directors and KMPs.

Palicy for Remuneration to Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

i. Remuneration to Managing Director/\Whole-time Directors:



{a} The Remuneration/Commission ete. to be paid to Managing Director / Whaletime
Directors, etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made there under or any ather epactment for the time being in force and the approvals
obtained from the Members of the Company.

{b) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the
Board of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing
Director/Whaole-time Directors.

ii. Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Directors:

{a} The Won-Executive/Independent Directars may receive sitting fees and such other
remuneration az permissible under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

{b) All remuneration of the Non-Executive/Independent Directors (excluding remuneration
for attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197(5) of the Companies Act, 2013} shall
be subject to ceilingflimits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under ar any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration
shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board of Directars or shareholders, as the case may be,

{c} An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Cptions and shall also not be
eligible to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company.

{d) Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive/ Independent Directars for services rendered
which are of professional nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the
purpases of clause {b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:
* The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the
professional; and
* In the apinion of the Committee, the Directar possesses the requisite
gualification for the practice of that profession.

iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel:

{2} The remuneration to Key Managerial Persannel shall cansist of fixed pay, in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Palicy.
{b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident
Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from time to time in
accordance with the Campany's Policy.

Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors:

Mo sitting fees were paid to non-executive nan-independent Directors or independent Directors as
they have waived their entitlement for the same.

Mon-executive Directors of 3 company's Board of Directors add substantial value to the Company
thiough their contribution to the Management of the Company. In addition they also play an
appropriate control role. Even considering the valuable role of the Independent Directors of the
Campany, your campany is in the process to finalized the sitting fees structure and shall update the
members at large subject to regulatory approval and compliance{s} if any.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
There were 4 {Four} meetings of the Board held during the year, specifically on May 25, 2023, August

14, 2023, October 19, 2023 and Januwary 24, 2024, The maximum time gap bebween any two meetings
did not exceed prescribed period af oine hundred twenty days.



The particulars of directors present at Board meetings are given below —

sr. Dates Name of the Directors eligible to attend the meetings and
No. whether they attended the meetings (Yes/MNof NA]
Rajendra Narendra Srikar Kaushik Kantilal
Mahavirprasad Mahavir Gopalrao 5hah
Ruia Ruia Kowlikar
1 | May 25, 2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes
2 | August 14, 2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes
3 | Qctober 19, 2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes
4 | January 24, 2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes
Total 4 4 q q

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are
adequate and operating effectively,

During the year under review, the Company was in compliance with the Secretarial Standards (S5}
i.e., 55-1 and 55%- 2, relating to "Meetings of the Board of Directors” and “General Meetings"”,
respectively,

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE ACTION

During the yvear under review, the Company has allotted 2,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs.100/- each to Essar Steel Metal Trading Limited on private placement basis, The implementation
of corporate action of the same is delayed, due to various technical difficulties. However, the
Campany iz under process of campleting the said corporate action as soon as possible.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS
All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Baard.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Eeguirements)
Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to the Caompany as Paid Up Equity Share Capital of the Company
is not exceeding Rupees Ten Crores and Met Worth of the Company is not exceeding Rupees Twenty-
Five Crores, as on the last date of the previous financial year and the specific certificate to this effect
has been obtained by the Company & kept on its records.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1392(2} of the Act and the rules made thereunder, the Members
at the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 28, 2020, had appointed M.
C. Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, having FREM.: 304012E as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company ta hald office far a period of five years, from the conclusion of the 36™ Annual General
hMeeting till the conclusion of 41 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year
2025,

Pursuant to the amendment to Section 139 of the Act effective from May 07, 2018, ratification by
sharehalders every year for the appointment of Statutory Auditors is no longer required and
accordingly, the Notice of ensuing 40™ AGM does not include the proposal for seeking shareholders’
approval for ratification of Statutory Auditors appaintment.



There is no audit qualification, reservation ar adverse remark far the year under review.

The Auditors’ Report to the Members for the year under review is unmaodified and does not contain
any gualification. The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors” Repart are self-explanatory
and therefaore do not call for any further clarifications under Section 134(3}{f) of the Act.

INTERNAL ALUDITOR

Internal Audit for the year ended March 31, 2024 was carried out and Internal Audit report at
periodic intervals as statutorily required were placed before the Audit Committee.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of
Section 148({1) of the Act, are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the Campany.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
the Company has appointed Ms. Privanka Qka, of M/s PRIYANKA DKA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing
Campany Secretaries bearing CF No. 22164 as secretarial auditor for the Company. The secretarial
auditrepart in the prescribed form i.e. MR-3 for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2024 is annexed
to the Board Report.

There were no gqualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or observations made in the secretarial
audit report except following —

1. The Company has filed certain Forms and Returns beyond the time Kimit specified under the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Bules mode thereunder — Due to various technical difficulties,
the Company was unable to file certain Forms and Returns during the stipulated time,

2. The Compony has appointed Ms. Richa Goyal as the Woman Director on the Boord of the
Company w.e.f. May 25, 2023, However, the Compamy has faifed to file Form DIR-12 with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MEA) i dote: Ms, Richa Goyal was appointed as the Additional
Woman Director of the Company at the Board Meeting held on May 25, 2023, However, due
to her personal difficulties, she was unable to provide the required documents for filling
statutory form with Ministry af corporate Affairs with respect to her appointment. Hence,
the Company was unable to file the respective Form with MCA, However, the Company has
appointed Mrs. Arpita Joshi {DIN 10725685} an the Board of the Company with effect from
August 5, 2024 as the Woman Independent Director.

3. The Company has appainted Ms. Renu Vias as Company Secretary and Campliance Officer of
the Company with effect from May 25, 2023, On May 23, 2024, \s. Vyas hos resigned from
the position of Compaony Secretory and Complionce Officer of the Company. IF is observed
that since April 1, 2023 to May 24, 2023, the position of Company Secretary was vacant: The
Company was in search of a candidate far the position of Company Secretary after the
resignation of Ms. Privanka Jatin Shah. Due to tight financial situation of the Campany, the
Company was not in a position to pay hefty salaries to the candidates, And hence there was
problem in getting candidates for the position of the Company Secretary. Howewver, the
company has appointed Ms. Renu Vyas as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company w.ef May 25, 2023

4, The Compamy has aflotted 2,50,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs, 100/-
eqch, on privote plocement basis to Essar Stee! Meta! Troding Limited on Ocfolber 19, 2023,
Farm PAS-3 for allotment of said preference shares was fifed on May 27, 2024, The said shares
are stilf not appearing in the demat account of Essar Steel Metal Troding Limited: During the
year under review, the Company has allotted 2,50,000 cumulative redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs.100/- each ta Essar Steel Metal Trading Limited, an private placement basis, The



implementation of corporate action and filling of Form PAS-3 with MCA of the same is
delayed, due ta various technical difficulties. However, the Company 15 under process of
completing the said corporate action as soon as possible,

SECRETARIAL CONPLIANCE REPORT

Your Company's paid-up equity share capital and net worth, on last day of the previous year, i.e_, on
March 31, 2024 are below the threshold limits mentiohed in the Begulation 15{2} of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015,

Henee, the campliance with respect to Regulation 244, i.e., Secretarial Campliance Report is not
applicable to the Company for the financial year under review.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal} Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, the Company had
farmulated and adopted a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Business Risk Evaluation and Management iz an ongoing process within the Organization. Yaur
Campany has implemented mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks and
has formulated a Risk Management Policy, The Audit Committee and the Board of Directars are
informed of the Risk assessment and minimization procedures.

During the yvear under review, no major risks were noticed, which may threaten the existence of the
Campany.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company does not meet the criteria of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Campanies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. But your Company has approved the
C5R policy of the Company along with the amendments thereon to provide a guideline for CSR
activities of the Caompany.

Your Company was in the process of identifying worthwhile avenues for CSR expenditure during the
year and the Company continues to remain committed towards undertaking C5R activities for the
welfare of the society.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

There is no infarmation regarding loans and guarantees as required under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 as the Company has not given any loans ar provided any guarantees
or securities during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

There is no transaction with Related Party which requires disclosure under Section 134(3} (h} of the
Campanies Act, 2013 and Rule &({2) of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014,

Related Party Disclosures under Accounting Standards mentioned in Note-21 to the Financial
Statements. Hence, AOC -2 is not required to be attached to the zaid repoit.

CODE OF CONDUCT



The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the
Baard and specified emplayees in the course of day to day huziness nperations of the Company. The
Company believes in "Zero Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings / behavior
in any form and the Board has laid down certain directives to counter such acts. Such code of conduct
has also been placed on the Company’s webhsite. The Code lays down the standard procedure of
business conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors and the designated employees
in their businezs dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in
business practices and in dealing with stakeholders, The Code gives guidance through examples on
the expected behaviar fram an employee in a given situation and the reparting structure,

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the
Code. A declaration to this effect sighed by the Whole Time Director of the Company appears
glsewhere in this annual report,

Cade of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading as per Regulation 8(2) policy is available an the
website of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company does not have any employee except KMPs. Therefore, the information required
pursuant ta Section 197 af the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appaointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Campany, is
not furnished.

VIGIL MECHANISM f WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism Palicy/ Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances
of fraud and mismanagement, If any which provides formal mechanism to the directors and
employees ta report their concerns ahout unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. Staying true to our core values of Strength,
Performance and Passion and in line with our vision of being one of the most respected companies
in India, the Campany is committed to the high standards of Corporate Governance and Stakeholder
Responsibility, The said Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained in respect of whistle
blowers whilst dealing with concerns and also specified that no discrimination will be meted out to
any person for a genuinely raised concern. The Policy on Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower
hMechanism may be accessed thraugh website of the Compainy viz. www arcaoleasing com

PERFORMARNCE OF JOINT VENTURE/CONSORTIURM

There are no Companies/LLPz which are Associates/Conzortium of the Company.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

There are na associate companies hut there is subsidiary company as of March 31, 2024, hence the
prescribed Form AQC-1 is required to be attached to this Report. A Cash Flow Statement for the

Financial Year 2023-24 is also attached to the Balance Sheet.

Pursuant to Sections 134{3){a} and 92{3) of the Act, read with Rule 12 af the Companies
(Management and Administration} Rules, 2014, the Annual Beturn in e-form MGT-7 may be accessed
on the Company's website at the web link wyw. arcoleasing.cam

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHAMGE EARNINGS AND
UTGO



The Company has not involved in any industrial or manufacturing activities, the Company has no
particulars to report regarding canservation of energy and technology abzorption as required under
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any foreign exchange earnings, or the
foreign exchange outgo towards Business promotion, Advertisement expenses, Legal consultancy
and Prafessinnal fees.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has an effective internal financial contral and risk-mitigation system, which are
constantly assessed and strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures which also
covers adherence to the Company's Policies for safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company's intermal financial control system is commensurate with its size, scale and
complexities of its operations.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct for prevention of insider trading. All the Directors,
Senior Management employees and other employees who have access to the unpublished price
sensitive informatian of the Campany are governed by this code.

During the year under report, there has been due compliance with the said code of conduct for
prevention of insider trading based on the SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015,

SIGNIFICANT AND PMATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review there are no significant or material orders pazsed by any Regulatar,
Court ar Tribunal against the Company, which could impact its going concern status or operations.

CETAILS OF AN APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR.

The Company has not made any application during the year or no application has been filed against
the company ar there are no proceedings pending against or for the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptey Code 2016,

DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE ANMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
OME-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING A LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

There is no ane time settlement made during the financial year.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUFTCY CODE, 2016 [IBC)

Mo such process initiated during the period under review under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code,
2016 {IBC}

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT [BRSR)



Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI {Listing Qbligations and Disclosures Reguirements) Regulations,
2015, including amendment thereunder, the Business Respansibility and Sustainability Report {BRSR)
for Financial Year 2023-24 is not applicable to the Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Directors” Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing the
Company's ohjectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations,

Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Impartant factors that could
make difference to the Company’s operations include changes in the government regulations,
developments in the infrastructure segment, tax regimes and economic developments within India
or abroad.
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Annexure A

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Fursuant to section 204[1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel} Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

To,

The Members,

Arco Leasing Limited (CIN L65910MH1984PLC0D31957)
Plot No. 123, Street No. 17,

MIDE, Marol, Andheri (E),

Mumbai - 400 093

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Arco Leasing Limited {hereinafter referred to as "the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our Opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report
that iin my apinion, the Company has, during the audit period cavering the financial year ended an 31%
March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed herewnder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and campliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the hooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 according to the

provisions of:

{i} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

{ii} The Securities Contracts {Regulation] Act, 1956 {'SCRA'] and the rules made there under;

{iii) The Depozitories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder;

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; [Not Applicable as there was no transaction happened during the period under
review]

vl The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 ["SEBI Act'):-

fa) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers} Regulations, 2011;

Address: 702, Akanksha, Prashant Magar, Maupada, Thane (W) — 400 602, Maharashtra, Indiz.
Mobile: 9519731842, Email: csprivankacka @yahoo.com
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{b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of |nsider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

{c} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

{d} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulatinns, 2014; [Not applicable as the Company has not offered any Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme during the period under review]

te} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities}
Regulatinns, 2008; [Not applicable as the Company has not issued any debt
securities during the period under review]

i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an |ssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulatinns, 1993; [There were no events occurred during the period which
attracts provisions of these regulations, hence not applicable];

(g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares} Regulations,
2009; [Mot applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under
review]

{h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
[Mot applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under review]

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

ti} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited read with the SEB| {Listing Obligations and Disclosure EReguirements}
Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except he following —

1. The Company has filed certain Forms and Returns beyond the time limit specified under the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder.

2. The Campany has appointed Ms, Richa Goyal as the Woman Director on the Board of the
Company w.e.f. May 25, 2023. However, the Company has failed to file Form DIR-12 with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) till date. In view of the same, it is observed that the
camposition of the Board of the Company was nat as per the regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing
Dhligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015% with respect to the appointment
of Woman Director during the financial year.

Later, the Company has appainted Mrs. Arpita Joshi as Woman Independent Director w.e f.
Aupust 5, 2024,

3. The Company has appointed Ms. Renu Vyas as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer af
the Company with effect from May 25, 2023. On May 23, 2024, Ms. Wyas has resigned from
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the position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. It is observed that
since April 1, 2023 to May 24, 2023, the position of Company Secretary was vacant.

4, The Company has allotted 2,50,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs.100/-
each, on private placement basis to Essar Steel Metal Trading Limited on October 19, 2023,
Form PAS-3 for allotment of said preference shares was filed on May 27, 2024, The said shares
are still not appearing in the demat account of Essar Steel Metal Trading Limited.

Az per the confirmation received fram Company the same is in the process.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Man-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were changes in the composition of the
Board of Directars during the period under review in accordance with the applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable legislation{s).

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines,

| further report that during the audit period, the Company does not have any events having a major
bearing on its affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards,
etc,

Signature:
MName of Company Secretary in practice / Firm: PRIYANKA OKA & ASSOCIATES

Drate: August 14, 2024
Place: Thane

FCS No.: 10084
CP Mo.: 22164
UDIN: FO10084FDC0%82761
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To,

The Members,

Arco Leasing Limited {CIN L65910MH 1984PLC031957)
Plot Mo. 123, Street No. 17,

MIGE, Marol, Andheri (E],

Mumbai — 400 093

My report of even date is to be read along with this [etter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial recard is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records hased on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to ohtain reasanahle
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done an test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have abtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures an test hasis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Campany.

Signature:
MName of Company Secretary in practice / Firm: PRIYANKA OKA & ASSOCIATES

Date: August 14, 2024
Place: Thane

FCS No.: 10084
CP No. 22164

Address: 702, Akanksha, Prashant Magar, Maupada, Thane (W) — 400 602, Maharashtra, Indiz.
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Annexure A2

Form No, MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204({1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
[Appointment and Rermmuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL ALIDIT REFORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

To,

The Members,

Ansu Trade & Fiscals Pvt Ltd (CIN U65100WEB1990PTC049122)
EP-Y-16, Sactor - V,

Kolkata - 700091, West Bengal

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Ansu Trade & Fiscals Pvt Ltd (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company” ). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us
a reasonable basis for ewvaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our Opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company far the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

{i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there
under;

{iii) The Depositaries Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder:

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; [Not Applicable as there was no transaction
happenead during the period under review]

Address: 702, Akanksha, Prashant Magar, Maupada, Thane (W) — 400 602, Maharashtra, Indiz.
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Fractising Company Secretaries
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{w) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ['SEBI Act’):-

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(&)

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; [Not applicable as the Company is not
listed at any Stock Exchange]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 1992; [Mot applicable as the Company is not listed at any Stock
Exchange]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable as the Company has not
issued any further shara capital during tha period under review]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [{Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014: [Mot applicable as the Company has not offered any
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme during the pericd under review]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; [Not applicable as the Company has not issued
any debt securities during the period under review]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993; [There were no events occurred during
the period which attracts provisions of these regulations, hence not
applicable]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable as there was no reportable event during
the period under review]

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

1998; [Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the period
under review|

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;

(i
[ii}

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except following —
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1. The Company has filed certain Forms and Returns beyond the time limit specified
under the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder,

2. The Company is yet to appoint Independent Director on the Board of the Company
since it has become the wholly owned subsidiary of a Listed Company.

3. The Company is yet to file Form BEN-2 with ROC after acquisition of shares of the
Company by listed entity.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted except the appointment of Third
Director. There were changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period
under review in accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable legislation(s).

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes an agenda were sent at |east seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting rmembers’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company does not have any events having
a major bearing on its affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc.

Signature:
Name of Company Secretary in practice / Firm; PRIYANKA CKA & ASSOCIATES

Date: August 14, 2024
Place: Thane

FCS Mo.: 10084
CF No.: 22164

UDIN: FO10084F000982770
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To,

The Members,

Ansu Trade & Fiscals Pvt Ltd (CIN U65100WEB1990PTCO049122)
EP-Y-16, Sector - V/,

Kolkata -700091,

West Bengal

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The wverification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4, Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viahility of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Signature:
Name of Company Secretary in practice / Firm: PRIYANKA CKA & ASSOCIATES

Date: August 14, 2024
Place: Thane

FC5 No.: 10084
CP No. 22164

Address: 702, Akanksha, Prashant Magar, Maupada, Thane (W) — 400 602, Maharashtra, Indiz.
Mobile: 9519731842, Email: csprivankacka @yahoo.com



ARCO LEASING LIMITED
(CIN: L65910MH 1984PLCO31957)

ADC-1

Annexure B

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3] of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies [Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Statement containing sailent features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint

ventures)

Part A: Subsidiaries

{Infarmation in respect of each susbsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.}

5l. No. | Particulars |

Amount in Rs.

1 MWame of the Subsidiary ANSU TRADE & FISCALS PVT LTD

Repoiting period far the company and its
subsidiary concerned.

31.03.2024

Reporting currency and exchange rate as
3 on the last date of the relevant financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

Not Applicable

4 Share capital 1,85,96,300.00
5 Reserves & surplus 2,03,014.34
& Total assets 2,55,12,644.00
7 Total iabilities 67,12,340.00
8 Investments il
9 Turnowver 14,85,000.00
10 Frofit befare taxation -26,70,000.00
11 Provision for taxation -

12 Profit after taxation -26,70,000.00

13 Proposed dividend

14 % of equity sharehalding

100%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Arco Leasing Limited

Rajendra Ruia Marendra Ruia
Whale Time Director Director & CFO
DIN: 01300823 DIN 01228312

Place: Mumbai

Date: August 14, 2024




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

Regd. Office: Plot No. 123, Street No 17, MIDC Marol, Andheri {E}, Mumbai - 4030093,
Tel: 022 28217222 Fax: 022-28361760, Email id: arcaleasingltd@email.cam
CIN:- LES910MHI1984PLCD3 1957, Website: www . arcaleasing.com

Annexura C
Form No. ADC-2

{Pursuant to clause {h) of sub-section {3} of seckon 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companiss
taccounts) Rules, 2014)
Farm for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 incuding certain arm’s
length transactions under third provisa thereta

1. Details of cantracts ar arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: THERE WAS NO CONTRACT
DR ARRANGEMEMTS WITH THE RELATED PARTY HEMCE, NOT APPLICABLE.

=} Mame(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

i) Mature of contracts/arrangements,transactions:

{ch Duration of the contracts f arrangements/transactions:

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or errangements or tranzactions including the valus, if any:

el Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

if} Cratels) of approval by the Board:

{g} Amount paid as advances, if any:

ih) Drate on which the specisl resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to
saction 188:

2. Details of material cantracts or arrangement ar transactions at arm’s length basis: THERE WAS NO
CONTRACT OR ARRAMGEMEMTS WITH THE RELATED PARTY HENCE, MOT APPLICABLE.

e} Mameds) of the related party and nature of reletionship:

ih) (b Mature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

ich Duration of the contracts / arrangaments/transactions:

id) 5alient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
ie) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

ift Amount paid as advances, if any:

BY AMD ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAJEMDRA RUIA MARENDRA RUILA
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN: 01300823 DIN: 01228312

Place: Mumbai
Cate; August 14, 2024



Annexure D
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The global economy and capital markets experienced a resilience and challenges of slowing
growth and an increasingly divergent economic environment in financial year 2023-24. A
notable recovery in the US economy, coupled with the robustness of major emerging markets,
had a part to play in this bounceback.

The faster-than-anticipated decline in inflation — to 5.8% over the year - contributed to an
optimistic economic outlook. This decrease was facilitated by the easing of supply-side
constraints, strict monetary policies, stable crude oil prices and moderating commodity
prices. Global inflation is forecast to decline steadily, from 6.8% in CY 2023 to 5.9% in CY 2024
and 4.5% in C¥ 2025.

Against a challenging global backdrop, India distinguishes itself as one of the fastest growing
major economies - driven by robust demestic consumption, favourable demographics, and
increasing disposable incomes. The government's strategic reforms, hefty investments in
infrastructure - both physical and digital - and initiatives such as ‘Make in India” and the
Production-Linked Incentive [PLI] scheme have been pivotal in enhancing the country's
growth, resilience, and self-reliance.

The Indian economy has grown faster than anticipated, at a rate of 8.2%, in FY 2023-24. This
growth was marked by a broad-based recovery of industrial sectors, especially manufacturing.
The financial services sectar in India has also acted as a catalyst for economic momentum. As
a vital enabler of capital flow and investment, this sector has witnessed innovation and
growth, particularly in fintech, digital banking, and inclusive finance.

With the RBI's supportive regulatory framework and initiatives aimed at promoting financial
inclusion and literacy, the financial services sector showed sustained growth. Although retail
inflation came down to 4.85% by the end of FY 2023-24 and remained within the RBI's
tolerance band of +/-2 percentage points, it remained above the long-term target of 4%. This
facilitated a stable interest rate environment conducive to long term investments and
spending.

The government’s approach included focusing on onshoring and friend-shoring production,
leveraging Al to maintain competitiveness in digital services, and surpassing non-fossil fuel

power generation target.

Your Company continues to mainly undertake business activities of providing leasing advisory
ar counselling services to other entities and form the leasing arm of such entities.

The Total Income for the financial year under review was Rs.1.28 lakhs as against Rs. 20,13
lakhs for the previous financial year. The total Income of the Company was drastically reduced
mainly because of no revenue generation during the financial year which led to loss of
Rs.12.33 Lakhs to the Company for the financial year.



There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report.

Industry

According to ICRA, the size of the NBFC industry is estimated to be around %46 Trillion of
which, the Retail NBFC sector (including HFC) contributes 55% - which is around £25.3 Trillion
as of FY 2023-24. The industry is driven by digital innovation and a focus on underserved
markets and has become a linchpin in the financial ecosystem - complementing the traditional
banking system by channeling essential funds into diverse sectors,

The NBFC industry grew at 14-16%, while the Retail NBFC sector including HFC sector grew at
18-20% in FY 2023-24. Particularly noteworthy was the pronounced increase in credit appetite
frorn the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector. According to the MSME Pulse
Report (February 2024), economic expansion has catalysed a surge in the need for commercial
financing.

Further shaping the landscape in 2023 was a regulatary adjustment concerning the exposures

of Scheduled Commercial Banks {SCBs) to MBFCs. The RBI announced an increase in risk
weights on SCB exposures to MBFCs by 25 percentage points, over and above the risk weight
associated with the given external rating, in all cases where the extant risk weight as per
external rating of NBFCs is below 100%. The industry dynamics, marked by innovative
financing and regulatory enhancements, position NBFCs as a key catalyst for India’s economic
growth and financial inclusion.

Risk Management & Internal Control System

We have an adequate system of internal controls in place commensurate with the nature of
our business and size of cur operations.

This framework encompasses a wide range of risk categories, including but not limited to
credit risk operational risk, market risk, liquidity risk, compliance risk, reputational risk,

financial risk, and people risk.

Our approach is to identify measure, mitigate and report of risks, supported by continuous
maonitoring of Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) to ensure the Organisational goals and objectives.

Outlook

Your Company is taking continuous efforts to generate the growth drivers, considering the
strategic priorities and keeping a track on information technology developments and
compliances thereon.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing our Company's
objectives, outleok, opportunities, and expectations may constitute “Forward Looking



Statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ
from those expressed or implied expectations or projections, among athers. Several factors
make a significant difference to our Company’s operations including the government
regulations, taxation and economic scenario affecting demand and supply, natural calamity
and other such factors over which our Company does not have any direct control.
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Annexure E

CEQ / CFO Certification

Pursuant to Begulation 17{8} of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Director and Chief Financial Officer of ARCD
LEASING LIMITED {“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

o, We have reviewed financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(2] these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions are entered
into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company’'s code of conduct.

C We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal contrals over financial re porting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems pertaining to
financial reparting af the Compainy and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit
Committes, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies,

0. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
{1} significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
{2} significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
{3} instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware aind the involvement

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal control system over financial reporting,

For ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAIENDRA RUIA
WHOLE TIMIE DIRECTOR
DIN: 01300823

NAREMDRA RUIA
DIRECTOR and CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DIN 01228312

Place: Mumbai
Date: August14, 2024



Annexure F
CERTIFICATE
To

The Board of Directors
ARCO LEASING LIMITED
Mumbai

Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the Securities Exchange Board of India {Listing Gbligations and Disclosure
Requiremeints) Regulatinns, 20015, this is to certify that the Financial Results for the Year ended 31%
March, 2024, do not contain any false or misleading statement or figures and do not amit any material
fact which may make the statements or figures contained thergin misleading,

For ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAJENDRA RUIA
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
DIN: 01300823

NARENDRA RUIA
DIRECTOR and CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DIN 01228312

Place: Mumbai
Date: August14, 2024



Annexure G
CONPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF CONDUCT

To,

The Members of
Arco Leasing Limited
Mumbai

The Board has formulated the Code of Conduct for Business Ethics for all Directors and Senior
Managers of the Company which has been posted on the website of the Company. It is hereby
affirmed that all Directars and KMPs/Senior Managers have complied with the Code of Canduct for
Buziness Ethics framed by the Company and a confirmation to this effect for the year 2023-24 has
been obtained from all Directors and KMPs/Senior Managers.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Place : Mumbai

Date : August 14, 2024
Rajendra Ruia
Whaole Time Director
DIN: 01300823



Annexure H

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has obtained from all the Members of the Board and Senior
Management Personnel affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors
and Senior Management Persannel as required under Regulation 26{3) of the Securities Exchainge
Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the F.Y. 2023-
24,

For ARCO LEASING LIMITED

RAIENDRA RUIA
WHOLETIME DIRECTOR
DI 01300823

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2024



M. C. JAIN & CO. 113, Inspire BKC, Main Road,

Chartered Accountants G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051
Email:mumbai@mcjainandco.com

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited Standalone
Financial Results of the Company Pursuant tc the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

To
The Board of Directors of
Arco Leasing Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date standalone financial
results of Arco Leasing Limited (the "Company™) for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023
{"Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of
Regulation 33 of the SEEI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (the "Listing Regulations™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Statement:

i is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in this regard; and

i, gives a frue and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit, other comprehensive income and
ather financial infermation of the Company for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified undsr section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, az amended {" the Act"). Our responsibilies under those
Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Results" section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with thesa requiremants and the Code of Ethics. We belisve that the audit evidencs abtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual financial statements. The
Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Statement that gives a rue and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income of the
Company and other financial information in accordance with the applicable accounting standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent, and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completensss of the accounting records, relevant o the
preparation and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatemment, whether due fo fraud or error.

o o

Offices At:  Kolkata - Mumbal - Noida - Delhi



M. C. JAIN & CO, 113, Inspire BKC, Main Road,

Chartered Accountants G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051
Email:mumbai@mcjainandco.com

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do
B0,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Respon sibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is
free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance ig a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatemeant when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud ar error and are considered
matenal if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to
fraud ar error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of
not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud iz higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may invelve coellusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
everride of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in orderto design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
alzo responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
sUch contrels.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matsrial uncertainty sxists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a goaing concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's repert to the related disclosures in the financial results or, if such
disclosures are inadeguats, to madify our epinion. Qur canclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluzte the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with thoze charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Offices At;  Kolkata - Mumbai - Noida - Delhi
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VWe also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indspendence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The Statemant includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figura
between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 2024 and
the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year,
which were subjected to a limited review by us, as required under the Listing Regulations.

For M.C.Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(C.A Vatsal Gohil)
Partner

Membership no. 146059

Firm Registration no. 304012E
Mumbai, May 23, 2024

UDIN . 24146059BKCTIK1604

Offices At;  Kolkata - Mumbai - Noida - Delhi



"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Tndependent Auditor’s Reporl Lo the members ol
Arco Leasing Limited on the standalone financial statements tor the vear ended 31 March 2024, we
report the following:

i. . As explained to us, there are no fixed assets owned by the company.

b. Acconding W he information and cxplanalion given Wr us, no procecdings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made
thereunder during the year.

il As caplained o us, there are ne invenlorics vwned by the company.

i, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ol the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans, sceurcd or unsceured, 1o
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties listed in the register
mainlained under Seclion 189 of the Companics Act, 2013, Conscquenltly, the prowvisions of
clauses 1id (a), (b and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section 133 and 136 of
the Companies Act, 2013 have been complicd will.

v.  The Company has nol aceepled any deposils rom the public and hence the ditectives issucd by
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companics (Acceplance of Deposity Rules, 2005 with regard 1o
the deposils accepled [rom the public are nol applicable,

V. As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has
nul been specificd by the Central Govemmenl under sub-seelion (1) of scetion 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

vil.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in
respoel el inceome lax, service tax, sales laxs, customs duly, cacise duly, value added s and
cess whichever applicable, which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

vitl,  Acconding lo the information and explanation given o us, compuny has no munsaclions, nol
reconrded in the books of account have bean surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961

ix, {a) In our opimton, the company has nol defaulied in wepayment of leans or alher bormowings
o in the payment of interest thereon 1o any lender during the yvear,
{1y Company is not declared wiltul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;
fer According W Lhe informalion and explanalion given o us, lerm leans were applicd [or the
purpose for which the loans were obtained;
{dy According to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short term basis
have not heen utilised for long term purposes,
fed According o Lhe informalion and cxplanalion given o us, the company has nol Liken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures;



%1

xil.

xdil.

x1v,

XV,

KVL

xvil.

xviil.

Xix.

() According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans
during the vear on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
CONTITRATIIAS;

{2} The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year

(b} According 1o the infommetion and cxplanalion given e us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible dehentuares (fully, partially
or oplionally convertibled durdng lhe year eacepl issuc of 2,350,000 Cumolalive Redeomable
Preference Shares of T 100 cach on prelerential allolment basis.

{a} According to the information and explanation given to us, any frand by the company or any
trand on the company has not heen noticed or reported during the vear,

by According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sul-section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT- as
preseribed under rule 13 of Compandes (Auvdil and Avdivers) Roles, 2004 with the Coentral
Ciovernment,

(e} According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-hlower complaints,
received during the vear by the company;

The company i5 not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clanse 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable
lir the company,

Acconding w the informalion and explinatons given W us, all ransacions witl the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
andd the detudls have been disclosed in the Finuncial Stiements ete, as reguived by the applicabls
accounting standards.

The company docs not have an internal audil system commensurale with the size and nalure of
ils business,

Acecording o the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the
company hias not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
wilh him and accordingly, the provisions of elavse 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable,

According w the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the
company 18 nol reguired W be registered vnder scelion 45-1A of the Rescrve Bank of India Act,
1934 and the company is not a Core Tnvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order
are e applicable;

The company has made a loss after tax of Rs.12.33 lacs in the financial vear as compared to a
profit of Rs. 6.54 lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been ne inslunce ol any tesignalion of the slalulory auditors occurred during the yeur
N material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of

meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of 1 year [om the balance shoeel die



XX The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on the
company. Accordingly, the provisions of clanse 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi. There are no wny gualilicalions or adverse remarks given by the respeclive auditors i the
Companies (Auditor's Reporty Order {CARO) reports, hence this clause is not applicable to the
COTPANY.

For M.C.Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(C.A.Vatsal Gohil)

Partner

Membership no. 146059

Firm Registration no. 304012E
Mumbai, May 23, 2024

UDIN : 24146059BKCTIK1604
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Consclidated Financial
Results of the Company Pursuant tc the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

To
The Board of Directors of
Arco Leasing Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date consolidated
financial results of Arco Leasing Limited ("Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Haolding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group") and its associates, for the
quarter ended and year ended March 31, 2024 ["Statement'), attached herewith, being
submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
{"Listing Requlations”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate
audited financial statements of the subsidiaries, the Statement:

i, includes the results of the following entities,

. Arco Leasing Limited

. Subsidiaries

a Ansu Trade and Fiscals Private Limited

il. are presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in this regard,
and

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated net profit, other
comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group for the quarter ended
and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (" the Act"), OQur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ® Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical reguirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thersunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe

B
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that the audit evidence obtained by us and other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in "Cther Matter" paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur apinion.

Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Resulis

The Statement has been prepared on the hasis of the consclidated annual financial
statements. The Holding Company's Beoard of Directors are responsible for the
preparaticn and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view of the net
profit {loss) and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group
including its associates in accordance with the applicable accounting standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thersunder
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accerdance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Group and its asscciates and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Directors of the
Heolding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of
Directars either intends to liguidate the respective entities or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
respective entities.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Conscolidated Financial Results

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a
whole is free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could

Offices At;  Kolkata - Mumbai - Noida - Delhi
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain prafessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the everride of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section
143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’' use of the geing
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
an the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going coencern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditer's report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the Statement represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results of the
entities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors to
express an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial information of such entities included in
the Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included
in the Statement, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audis carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reascnably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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We also performed procedures in accordance with the Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/ 44/
2019 dated March 29, 2019 issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India under
Regulation 33 (8) of the Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable.

The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 being the
balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year
ended March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the end
of the third quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review
by us, as required under the Listing Regulations.

For M.C.Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

{C.A.Vatsal Gohil)
Partner

Membership no. 146059

Firm Registration no. 304012E
Mumbai, May 23, 2024

UDIN : 24146059BKCTIL9497
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ARCO LEASING LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 21, 2024

Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Finlakhs Zinlakhs
ASSETS
MNon Current Assets
Financial Assets
Investments 2 21719 21719
Other Mon Current Assets 3 - -
21719 217.19
Current Assets
Financial Assets
|mve=tment= 4 18.73 17 46
Trade Receivables S - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents Ea .54 0.85
Bank Balances Cther Than Akove &h - -
Other Financial Assets T 1.85 1 ﬁi
21.12 19.78
TOTAL ASSETS 23831 236.97
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital & 24.01 24
CHher Equity 2| [55.91) (43 .58)
{31.90) {19.57}
Liahilities
Current Liakilities
Financial liakilities
Trade Pavables 10
Total cutstanding dues of micre enterprizes and
small erterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small entarprizes 857 .85
Other Financial Liabilities 11 250.00 20000
Other Current Lisbilities 12 11.12 4807
Cument Tax Liahilities (Met) 13 0.52 082
270.21 256.54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 238.31 236,97 |
Significant Accounting Policies 1
(Motes forms integral part of Accounts)
A5 per ouwr report of even date
For M.C.Jain & CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For Arco Leasing Ltd
Firm Registration Mo. ; 304012E
CA Vatsal Gohil Rajendra Ruia MNarendra Ruia Renu Vyas
Parimer Whole Time Director  Director & CFO Company Secretary
Mermbership Mo.; 146058 DIM:01300823 OM:01228312 M.no. AGRAZT

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 23-May-2024

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23-May-2024




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Mote
No.

For the year ended
March 31, 20324

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue
Revenue from Gperations
Cther Income

Tatal Incame
Expenses

Employes Cost
Other Expenses

Total Expenses
Profitf{Loss} from ordinary activities before tax
Tax expense
al Currert Tax
0y Deferred Tax
Profit/{Loss} after tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income (comprising loss and other
comprehensive income)

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share of T 10 each

14

15

18

7in lakhs

7in lakhs

1.28

1504
1.148

1.28

2013

083
1267

11.4%

1360

1142

T233]

8.64

2149

7233}

{12.32)

(513

B4

6.54

272

Significant Accounting Policies
(Motes forms intagral part of Accounts}

As per our report of even date

Far M.C.Jain & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, ; 304012E

CA Vatsal Gohil

Partmer

Mambarship Mo.: 148059
Place: Mumkbai

Data: 23-May-2024

Far and an behalf of the Board of Directors
For Arco Leasing Ltd

Rajendra Ruia
Whaole Tirme Director
CIMN:01300823
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23-May-2024

WNarendra Ruia
Director & CFO
OIM:o1228312

Renu Yyas
Company Secretarny
M.no. AS9427



ARCO LEASING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Z in lakhs)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 24.01

Changes in share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 24.01

Changes in share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 24.01
E. OTHER EQUITY

(Tin lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022 (37.79)
Profit/{loss) far the year (12.33)
Other Comprehensive Income -
As at March 31, 2023 (50.12)
Profit/{loss) far the year 6.54
Other Comprehensive Income -
As at March 31, 2024 43.58)
Profit/{loss) far the year (12.33)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Teotal (55.91)
As per our report of even date
Fer M.C.Jain & CO For and en kehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For Arco Leasing Lid
Firm Registration Mo. : 304012E
CA Vatsal Gohil Rajendra Ruia Marendra Ruia Renu Vyas
Partner Whale Time Director Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No.: 146052 DIMN:C1300823 DIN:D1228312 M.no. AB2427

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23-May-2024

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23-May-2024




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tinlakhs Fin lakhs

Zash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit hefors taxation {1233} .64
Adjusthent for

Met Loss f (Gaing on sale of Investment - -

Fair Walue changes in Man Current Investments {1.28) {1.13)

|ntarest income - -
Operating Profit ! {Loss) before working capital changes {13.60) 7.5
Adjustnent for:
(Increase ) Cecrease in Receivahles - -
(Increase ) Decrease in Current Assets and Financial assets {0.48) {0.72)
|ncrease [ (Decrease) in Payables and Financial lianilities {36.33) {4.33)
Cash used in operations (50.41) 2.47
Less Taxes on Income Paid - (2.10)
Net Cash generated from f (used in) Operating Activitias {50.41) 0.36
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Furchase of Investments [including advances) - -
| nterest received - -
Proceseds from Sale of Investmeants - -
Net Cash used in Investing Activitias - -
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Redemption of preference shares [200.00) -
Froceeds from issue of shares 2a0.00 -
MNet Cash generated from Financing Activities 50.00 -
Net increase { (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (0.41) 0.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.95 0.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.54 0.95

Mote: The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'ndirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

i(Ind AS) 7 on Cash Flow Statament.
Ag per our report of even date

For M.C.Jain & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, : 304012

CA Vatsal Gohil

FPartner

Membership MNo.: 146059
Flace; Mumibai

Oate: 23-May-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Far Arco Leasing Ltd

Rajendra Ruia Narendra Ruia Renu Yyas
Whole Time Director Director & SFO Company Secretary
DIN:013200823 DINO1228312 M.no. AS5437

Place: Murnai
Date: 23-May-2024



ARCO LEASING LIMITED
Notes Tarming part of the financlal statements Tor the year ended Mareh 31, Z0Z4

1

21

2.2

Z3

24

25

COFPORATE INFORMATION
Arco Lessing Limited {"the Compsny’ is & listed public limited company inconporated on Febnaary 1, 13984,
BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Easis of preparation

The financial statemerts of e Company bave been preparsd in aocordances With Indian Accourting Standards {Ind A5 ) notfied under section 133
of Companiea Ack, 3013 (the Act) [Companies {Indan Accoanting Standards) Bules, 307148)] and other relevant prowvision of e Act.

Significant accounting judgements, esimates and assumplions.

The preparaticn of firancial statenerts requires management to make judaement=, estimatzs and assumptions that sffsct the reported amounts
of revenues, sxpenses, as=ets and liakiliiss. and the accormparying discloswres. and the discloswre of contingsnt lizbilities. Uncersirty about
treese assumplicns and estimates could resUt in sutcoines thal rsgure o matet sl adustrset e e caring amaurt of asssts oF lablities afected
I e perincs

The Company peepared its financial statemerts besed on assumptions ard estimstss on paremetzrs availakle at that time. Existing
circumstances and essumplions about future developmesnts. howaver, may changz due to markst charges or circumstances arsing that ans
neyohd the control of e Sempany. Such chabges are eflecid In e assdmplicns when they Gooal,

Falr value measurement of financial instuments

Fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an sssst or paid o transfer & liahility in an ordery transsction betwsen market paricipants at
the measurement date, reqardlese of whether that price is dirsctly chesrvable or sstimeted wsing ancther veluaticn technicue. In estirmating the
fair walue of an aszet or a liability, the Compary takes into account the charactzrstics of the az=et or lability if market participants would takes
those charazterstcs it account when priving e ass=t or liability at the measurzment date. Fair value for measirement andior dsclosdns
purooses in thess financial statements Iz determined on such a basls, edoept for share based payment transactions that ars within the soooe of
Ind A3 102, [easing transactions that ane within te scdoe of Ind A5 17, and measurements that kave seme similanties to farvalus butare met f&ir
value, such a= net mealisabls value In Ind AS 2 or valuz 0 use In Ind A5 36

In additicn. for financial reporting purposss. fair valus measurements. ane cetegorisad inte Lewvsl 1, 2, or 5 based on the degre=s to which the inouts
to the fair value measwrements are chearvablz and the s grifizance of the inputs to the fair value measwement in its entirety, which ars described
2 Tl lonrs!

Leved 1 Inputs are guoted pHoes (Uradusied) noactve markets for lderfical assets oF lablifiss thet the anity can acoess 2t the meastremsnt
date;

Leved 2 Inputs ane Inplits other than guoted pHoes Includsd within Leved 7, that ange obsersanle for the asset o lakRy, elther dikscty oF Indirscty,
ELG]

Leved 5 inputs are Unobmeable nputs for e asssr or ek ity

Income tax
The income Bx expensa or credt for the perod is the tax payabls on the cumant period s taxabls incomes based on the spplicakls incoms tax rate
adjustsd by changss in defarmed tax sessts and lisbiliizs attrikutsbls o emporary diferencas and o urused tax losses.

The clittent hooms e cnalges s calcllated af e bass of the B laws shacted &t the ehd of the rooring pedad I Indlia Managemmesat
peradically evalldates postobs ks n e Gy etrbs Atk respect i stlatiors owhich applicakls fay regdations ars sublect o inbsHpestation
&nd establishes provieions whers appropriate.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i= reviswed at ¢ach reporting date and reduced to he extzrt that it i= ne longszr prebakiz that sufficidnt
tananle profit will ke avallabls o alow all or part of the: defersd tae assst o B uliliszd. Unrecogrised deferred tax assets are re-assessed st each
reparting date and are recoghized to the extert that it bas béotme prokabole that fubuare texable profits will allow the deferméd e asset to be
recoversd

Provisions, canlingent liabiliies and contingent assets

Provizions are recognised when the Company kas B present lzgal or constnuctive obligation. 2= a result of past events, and it is probablz that an
outfiowr of resourcas, that can rsliakly be estirnatad, will be requirad o setle such an chligation. IF the effect of the time value of monsy is material,
provislans abs ceternited by discourting 1 expecied ftdre ash fows to pest peéssnt valls Usltg at appropraie pre-tax dscsdnt mate that
reflechs currert markst amsessmants of the s valug of mehey and, where approptaie, the dsks seecific o e Dbty Lneiading of the discolet
is recognised in the statement of prefit and loss &5 & finance cost Provisiors are reviewed st esch belancs shest date snd ere adjusted to reflect
the current best estimats.

Contingent liakilites are not meocghised but dsclesed whers e existencs of an obligation will dnly B& confirmed By future everts or wihers the
ameiint of the obligation carnot be meazumed reliably. Corfngernt assets are not rdocgrizsed, but are dsdosed whers an inflow of eoeneimic
nensfita is probable.

Financial instruments
A financizl instrumentis any contract that avvee ise to & inancial asset of one entity and a inancial liability or equity instrament of another entity.

{i} Financial assels

All Tnandal asssts ake recoghised Rfally &t far valde plus, 6 e cass of narclal asssts oot eoeshced at falr yalde trough orofit o Toss,
traneection coste that are atiibutalle to the acquisition of the financiel asest Trensaction costs of financisl esests camisd at fair valus trough
profitor loss ere expensed in profit and loss.

Subzeguent measwement of dekt imstnuments depencs on the Compary's businees model for maneging the eessts and the cesh flow
charazterizizs of the assests. Thers are thres measurement categories inte whizh the Company classifies its d=btinstruments;



ARCO LEASING LIMITED
Notes Tarming part of the financlal statements Tor the year ended Mareh 31, Z0Z4

Amarbised cast Assets that ane held for collechon of contrachlal cash fows whers fose csh foves epresert salely pavmert of princlpal @nd
Interest (SFPI) are measured at amorised st AR Inmal mesubsment, sbich inaiclal asssts arg suosecllerdy msasueed at amatissd cost
using the sffective intsrestrate (EIR) method. Armorised cost is celoulsted by teking inte account eny discount ar premium on acquisition and fess
or coste that sre am integrel part of the EIR. The EIR amedisston is induded in other income in the orefit o less. The lesses ansing from
Impairment are recognised in e profit orloss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Azsets that are held for cellection of corrachsl cash fliows and for seling the
anmets, where the asssts’ cash flows represent solely paynent of pincipal and irterest (3PP, are measared at fair value trough ather
comprenensiee incorme, Fair value rovements are recogrised in the other comprenenswve income, sxoent for the recogriticn of impainrent gains
or losses, interest incoma and foreign exchangs gein and lossss which are rscognizsed in profit and loss. Whan the financial sesats is
derzpogrized. the cumulative gain or loss previcusly recogrissd in 2O is redasefied from equity o profit o loss. Interest income from thess
nakclial assets s hclded I other bocmes Usiig e sffective IRferest R mathod

Fair value through profit and loss {FVPL): Assets that co not imsst the criteria for amortissd cost or PWOCT Bre measured st fair value trcagh
prifit or loss. Debt imstruments included within the FYPL category are messunad st fair value with all charges recognized in the statecnent in profit
&nd lees. Irtarest income from these financial asssts ie included in other income ueing the effective interest rate method.

All equity investmerta in scope of Ind-A% 109 are measared at fair value, Eouty insmuments which are beld for Tading are classified as at FWPL.
For all other ecuity instruments, the Company may dassify the same sither as at FWT2C1 or FYPL. The Cormpary makes such elaciion on an
instrumentdoy-instrument basis. Tha dassficstion is made on initial recognition and is irrevocabls.

Eguy Irsriaments which ars classifled a5 FYOGL all Falr valle changss b e insthulmert, excluding dvidends are recognizsd n the QG Thers
I= o eyl hg of e armoutts from O] o prolt and es eveh b salé of Ivesiment. However, the company may e bster tne curmulative gain o
lose within equity. Equity instruments induded within the FWYPL category are nmessured st fair value with all charges recognised in the peofit or
lose.

Impairmment of Ainancial assels
The Compary assesses o 8 ferwand looking basis the expested credit losses asseciated with its azséts carmied at amortized 2wt and FYWOC
debt iramaments. The impainment methodolegy applied deperds on whether there has been a signficant increass in credit risk.

The Compary applize the 'simplfied epproach’ for recognition of imgainrment less allvwancs on trade recaivables. The application of simplified
approach dops not requine the Sompany to frack changss in creditrisk. Rather. it recogniss impainment loss allevwsance bassd on lifstimz Expected
Crecit Losses" [ECL) at=ach rsporing dats, right from its inital recognition.

Far recogiltich of mpal et e on ofner iFanclal asssts and Hsk exposdre, the Company detérmives that whsther hers bas been a sgrificet
incregse in the crecit risk since initigl recognition. |f crecit riek has not increeeed sigrificandy, 124month ECL is used to provide for impairment
lose. Howewer, if ceedit risk hes increased significantly, lifstirne ECL ie used. IF. in B subsscusnt pericd, credt quality of the instrunent imarowes
=ch that thers is no longzr 8 sighificant increase in credit risk since Inital récoghiion, ten the entity reverts to réoognising impairment loss
allowance bazed on 12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit loases reauting from all posaible default everta over the expected life of a financial instnament. The 12-

rarth ECL s a porficn of the lifetime ECL which results from defadlt events on a finandal ingrurmsat that are poasiole wittin 12 marths after the

reporting date. ECL is the differencz batwssn sll contractual cash flows that ars dus to the company in sccondancs with the contract and all the

zaeh flows that the eriity cusoects to recsive {i.6. all cash shortfalls]l. discounted st the crginal EIR. Whan estimating the cash fows, an entity is

required to consider:

= Al gentraciual fedrs of e financial nstumsnt {hciuding prepayimesnt, extenslon, call and smilae sptiors) owsr the sdoeched B of thes
firahclial nsfiiment. Hoesver, I maks cases wWhen e expacied Ife of the francial ihstrumsnt carnob b estimated melaby, then the enfity s
required to uee the remsiring contractusl teem of the firancial inetnunent

*  {asn flowes frotn the sale of collateral hesld or othst eredit enhatcsmerts that are Integral to the contractUual s

ECL impairmzntloss allowance {or revéersal) réocgrized during the period Is resdgrized as incomsy expenss in the statement of profit or loes, This
amelintis reflzcted in | separate lins in the profit or loes a5 an impaiment gain or loss.

{ii] Financial liabiliies
Al financial lizbilities are recognised intially &t fair value and, it the case of loara and borrowings and Tade and payables, net of directy
stirilbutaki= ransaction coste. The measwremant of financial liabiliiss depends on their dassification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profif or loss:

Fimanc al labilifiss at falrvalus threugh orofit oF lass includs Arancial k) mes desgnated upan Bzl reeognitien as @t e valde hreagh proit or
lose. For lisbilties designated s FWPL, fair value geinsS loeses adributable to changes in own crecit risk are recognized in QLI These gains! loes
&re not sabeecently trarsfemed w profit o loss. However, the Sompany may ransfer the camulatve gain or loes within ecuity. Al other changes
in fair velus of such lizbility are recognised in the steternent of proficorlose.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Finandal lignilities classified ard measured at amatised auch as loare and bomrowings, race and other payable are initally recognized at fair
wialue, net of transa clion cost incured. After inifial recognition, firancial labilities are subseguently measared atamorised cost using the Efective
interest rate {EIR) rethed. Gains and Iosses are recoghnised in prefit or loss when e liabiliies are derecognised as well as through e EIR
amortization process. Amorized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or preemium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. Tha EIR amortisation isincluded as finance costs in the ststement of profit and loss.
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Dre-vrecounition

A financial liakility is derscogni sed wWhen the obligation under e liability is dizscharged or cancelled or edpires. When an existing finanzial liability
Iz replaced By ancther from the same lender 2n substartially different terms, oF e tedmes of an s sting liaoility are substardially imocifizd, such an
eycharge o modification s treated as the de-recogniticn of the orginal lisbility @and the recognition of @ rew liahility. The diference in the
respeciive canying amounts s reccgnised in the statement of profit o loss.

Properly, Plant and Equipment
Tangibls aszets are stated at cost of acquisition lsss accumulsted deprecistion and impairmsent loss, i any. Costindudes acquisition cost which is
diFscily atbutable fe Bring e aswets o s warking condticn

The company has hol cnarged ary depreclatiaon for e cuarment Year e balances 10 te Axed asset rorsssnt 1 schap valls of the assel af the
time of sale s per the orovisions cortained in comgpanies ect, 2013,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalznts comorise cash 3t kank ard In hand, short-term déocsits With banks with odginal matarity of lez= fhan three months
a@nd ahorttenm highly licaid ireestments, that are readily coreertible info cash and which are aubject to insignficant risk of changes in the principal
arnclnt. Bank overdrafs, which are repayable on demand and form an irtegral part of the operations are included in cash and cash equivalents

Segment Reporling

The accounting poliziés adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the acceurtng pdlicies of the: Company. Segment revenue, ssgmént
sypenses, Segment dsssts and aagment liabilities hewe been identified to aegmenta on the bass of their relationahip to the cperatng activties of
the segrment Revenue, expenses, assets and lisbilifies which relate fo the Company @3 8 whele and are rot sllccable to ssgments on a
repsonabie basis hawve been included under ‘unallocated revenue f expenses [l assets §iabilites’

Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share ars comouted by divicing the profit / {lose) by the wisighted avarage numiosr of eouity shares outstandng curing the ysar.
Eartings cotsidered Ih assetaln by the Company's eamings per sbare ars the profit! (iss) for the vear affer ceducting prefereice Qi dends and
Attrinutakis taxes afttibutable o squity sharsholders The welghted awvsrage number of @quty snarss aulstanding GUHPg the wear and for 2l years
pressnted ie adjusted for events, such as boras shares, other than the corwvereion of potertisl equity sheres that heve changed the numbsr of
equity shares cutstanding, without a comresponding change in rescarces.

Far the purposs of calcalating diuted eamings pee share, e  profit £ {loas) for te year are adusted for the effects of changes in incore,
aoensss, tax and dividends that would heve ococumsd hed the dilutive petsntial souty sharss besn comverted inte equity sherss. Such
adjustmants afer |king aceount of tax include prefsrence dividerds or other items related to convertible preferencs shams. intsrest on
convertible debt and any other chanpes in incoma or sxpenss that would result from the conversion of dilutive potential erdinary shares. The
o lghted average number of shares autstanding durng e vear s adusted for the efects of all diuiive potential squity skans
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Inwesmants Non-Current

A= at Az at
March 11, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakh= T in lakh=
Lono term unguoied non-trade fully pald up
Inwesrments in Subsidiary
1.852 550 (P 1,352,630} litsaelrment i Alsu Trade & Flosale Pet Lid of 210 each 4 I #HTAa
21719 217.14
Ldhor Non Curent Assels
A% at A% at
March 11, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakh= T in lakh=
Unsecurad, Consldarnd Good
Adhsnes Inzoime Tse (Het) - -
Tofal = -
Inwesments - Current
Ax al _ hsal
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2022
7in lakhs Tin lakhs
Current Investments
Imezstrerts in Mutiel Funds
12, TERBEE unfte (P12, FEE.ED2) UTI Dvhairie Band Fund - Regular Gredth Plan 18.72 1745
Tofal 18.73 17.45 |
Trade Reccivalies
A% at Af at
March 31, 2024 Marzh 31, 2023
Zin lakh= Tin lakhs
Uneozured, considamd goad
Toia = -
al Cash and Cash Equivalenls
As at At at
Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Zinlakhs Zin lakhs
e i handd S oS 0.0s
Bakaize with Bank in Suiment Acuaunts SR 0.9
Total 0. 64 .46
b Bank Balances Other Than Above
A% &l A% &l
March 31, 2024 Marzh 31, 2023
21n lakhs 21n lakhs
Fikzd Dapasit with Bznk with raburity poricd cxccoding
thraz marihe but nod cwsaoding fsokz monthe
Total - -
Cvher Financial A sseis
As at A at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin lakh= Tin lakhs
Crher Rezoivables 1.65 137
Propeid Exponges
Total 1.85 1.37
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BIGHNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 2024

A0

1

Equity Share Gapltal
As at As at
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Zin lakhs Zin lakhs
Authorired Capital*
B R A 0N G Equity Bhares of TG each A0 A
J00.0m 00,00

lssued , Subscribad & Fully Pald up Capltal
PARLTEOPN . 24007 Equity Bhenes of T 10 sech 24 P |
Tolal 2401 24.01
T Tutsl Authar e sapitel neldang Surdlaive Redewarsbis Frofeoatea Sharas - € G0 Lakhe (PY. < 600 Laths)i
hebes;
5 Reconsliadon of the nurber 51 sheres snd srmeord eutstansing St the bagnring ard st the snd s1 he wer

MWarch 1, 2024 March &1, X023 ]

Bornbers Tinlskhs Humkers T in lakh=

Equity &
Balanze at the baginring of the yesr T 0T . 240,070 PN
less i duriig e wer - -
Eabainze at the wod of e yeai EARCTE 4 w0 T w4
b. Dabils of shercholdars h:ll:im rnorg ten 5% shoros in tha cargany _ _

Tareh 31, 2024 arch 31, 2023

MUkl e B Hutrizel & H

Ehri barandra Ruis EREE 16 74 1 EiE 18.74%
arrl. Suiity Rui o 1242%: 2811 18.42%
Shiri Rajaiedia Ruia 1E,CEE 2T 18535 5T

% Bughts, praferances snd restricions gthashed fo shares: The campary hes sne shss of souity shsres of fase welus of 3 10 asch. Bvery
chatghaldar bs enliled 1w wols 1o every shaies bold, I the gtbent of Iguidation e equily shaishaldes chall by wnbied Lo resev eimainig
eRsxts of the zempany efter distrizution =4 all duzs in grapartian of fier hzlbings.

. I prawadng v waane the Sarpany has not allated any elsi@e without ppirs Db tecetnad 1 cash and it as it leeded bails =hame o

bought back any sharas.

Cyher Equitty
As at At at
Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
*inlakhs *in lakhs
Erhined Eaminos
Balarzz at the kzginring af the year r4 | 2315

Al Prottilaea) 1an ths year 1223 g
Total {E6.91) 43.58)
Trade Payables

A= mk As Ak
March 31, 2024 Marzh 31, 2023
21n lakhs 21n lakhs
Tatal nutstznding duas of rmizrz arterprises 2nd small znbeprses
Tatal outstsncing duaz of cradiors ethar than ricre snarerisas snd smell anerpizes a.67 TR
Total B.6T 705
CHher Financial Liabili ies
Az at As at ]
Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
2 in Lakhs # in Lakhs
ZF0 00 G H Cundstive Baseeimide Pretalenss 220.06 .00
Total 260,00 200.00
Mibes:
=] Auhorzed Sagitel :

[Particulars | MWarch 21, 2024 | Warch 31, Wid |
B A (P, 0005 Uikt Rt rable Frofisl sy Shirus ul 2 100 wach [ 0] 250.00
bl Recenaiizton o fie nurrbe ol shanee and airunt oulstaiding 21 the tedginning and ab the wmnd of e pear.

Wareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
buarmbars # in Lakhs Humizsrs % in Lakhs

Erefarsuge shiles
Bataize at the baginring of the uai il i b 205, 00 25000
I=mued during thz peer LALCDE EaE
Less Redzomed during the yzar fEUEEE FREEUE -

Balanzz at the ond of the yoer _ 2 50,000 26000 20, 0060 i 200.00 |
2 Couluibe 15 sl wllun o Lslliong e i 595 wlisinm 10 Je e pany — _
Eriataiina shialgs Mareh 31, 2024 [March 31, 2023

Pharntens T in Lakhs= Humizzre % in Lakhs
Evwral Steal Katal Tiadig Lt (eat e Extdall
Infrasiracbure Hazire Lid new arclgaraoed: =00 RO AR ] 200,02

I The el pices el ge eckee bl peoon deieared s besoog ioe ol U holls aeed sesodingly cizdozed orcie ol Tansis) skliies,
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135

CHher Current Lia bilities

Az at Az at
fflarch 24, 2024 fflarch 2, 2023
< in Lakhs <in Lakhs
Slalulay Liabillive [ fein
Advercs tram others 1115 131
Frovimans - -
Total 11,12 A3.07
Current Tax Llablitdes (et}
A5 at A5 at
¥larch 31, J024 I¥arch 31, 2035
# In Lakhs #In Lakhs
Carrent Inzome Ter Liakiity (Het) .52 ORI
Total 052 0.6F




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

14 Other Income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs Tinlakhs
Interzst on deposits with bank - -
Frofit on Sale of Investrments B -
Fair value Changes in Inveatments 128 113
Total 1.28 1.13

15 Other Expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended

March 31. 2023

Tinlalkhsz Finlakhs
At fass 118 118
Lulvertsament Expenses 08z L4
Legal & Professicnal Faes 10,35 5as
Miscellanzeus Expenses - -
Frofessional Tax .03 003
Filing Feos, Rates & Taxes 028 n1a
Wiehaite Exp - -
Total 12.87 11.49

16 Eamings Per Share

There arg no potential equity shares and hence the basic and diluted samings per shars are same. The calculation af the basic and diluted eamings

per ghare is based on following data.

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Earnings [ProfithLoss) alter tax)]
Weightaed average number of equity shares far the purposs of caloulating eamings per share

Basic & Diluted Eamings per shars of face value of T 10 each iT)

(12.33]
2,40.070

15.13]

G54
240,00

a2

17 The company doea not have any commitment and contingent liakiliies

18 Tha company has singla business ssgment of Investments.



ARCO LEAEING LIRITE D
SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MOTES FORMING FART OF AGCOUNTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGH 3, 2034

14

Flnanclal Instrumants ;

1 Capital management

The Company marages il capilal o ersoe bal be Companry wil be able © oordnoe o= 2 goirg conzern vhile meaximizing the ream o seshioldees Grough be opomisalion

o e ek and mouily balance,

Ihz capral srustune othe Sompany Tanssts o°net et and ol equey o0 e Campany

Ihz Samgsny s not S0 oot B any extemally mpassd capial mqurzmznts. 1hs Coonpany £ knard of droesars ravzws ths cagisl sTushune 2 an snnuel 2ass. The nancssl
iz up “or the comgany ars ong bem InNEUE az 1tz 1 IrE sructune business. etz all new capits | requrs menss ars duly discussed oy 112 Board ot drecsrs. The
Lampainy manmrs is capral usng greanng reta, whizh & net seit dedsd o toll cqury Katdohbincuds s eomesangs k255 cesh and casl cuvakms and athor bank

Esbncss.

2 Catagories of financlal mstrumants

Parliculars As atarch 17, 2024 Az atWarch 31, 2023
Camying Fair values | Carrying | Fair walues
Hncynl —
T n lakhs)
Elnanclal arsets
MMeasured af amerised cost
Irrsesimienis in subsidizry non-canen, FIERL 21015 M AL
Trads Roeoivables n 0 - -
Lazh and Cash =juvalkrs .54 .54 [R5 o
Henk Zatanzea Drvar [han (it Sacve jul H - -
Cilher Finarisil Auee o 1.83 1.85 1.57 157
Total linahcial agsets carried at amortised cost 210.68 210.58 218.51 21861
Fair Value through profit and loss account
Ireestmzntin Wnual -unds 18.73 18.73 17.43 17 48
1872 1873 17.45 17.46
MMeasured af amerised cost
Trade Payables 357 .57 TE TG
Cthzr Fnanczial Lia bifizs 23000 230.00 Z00.00 20000
Finannial liahilbhas maasured at amerbscd cost Z58.57 258 5T Z07T.55 Z07.95

Fair valuz hicrarchy

Leval T rpuls gy quolsd prises unad wveed) o sclive e azls

Thz “zllaving able prosercs the 2 value measuremznt hicrarzhy o financial asse= ard liabilies mzasarzd a-fair valuz an eoamng bags,

Fartizulars

A5 at March 21, 2024

[ _as atmaren 31, 2023 |

Falr value tveasuraiment using

Quated prices in acijve
rarkets {Level 1)

Qusbed prices in achive
markels (Level 1}

FYTPL linancial assels designaled ai Tair value
Irvszalrienlin Wuwzl “unds Dquobs:d)

& In

lakhs)

18.73

3 FInanclal Ask management objectves

The Cumpare's Dopnas e deparbngn, menibars god reanasaes e Tzl deke rekaling o by cpereoors o by Compaeg Diesoagh nleresal e reporks stich analess
Uz expzrgurss by degres and ragniady ol rigke, Thegy rigas nsbeds marke s dindudingg surmercy risk, ineres, rae rigk arsd slher prise iek) sradlrizk and baaidily o4

4 Cradit risk managemeant

Credit rigk reors = the risk hata countzparty will decauk on ns contracual ohigadzne resulting in finarcial lass o the Company. The Compary has adapezd & policy of arly
dealing with oredibearthy counberpartizs ard coning su-cicnt colaeral, wherz apprapriale, a5 a means o miigatng the re< af Inanzal oss from deuli,

Trade receivables

Tradz recewvables zansst of a @rge number of cusamers, spread azrass diverss industics and goagr phical arcas Ongaing oredit cvaluatian is perarmed on the finanzial
zondiian o tradz rocevable and whom appropriake, oredn guaranksz insdrancs cover & puchazed. The ou=manding trde recoivables are regulary menitred and

appropriats achan is @oon “or collesion of ovordus rads rooevables,

Cash and bank balances

The cresdilris on Igquid ande ged e e Bank depoeile iz lmilsd bessase e soan ziper deg gre banss wih hah credil-ralings aesaned by nlernabonal cediaaing sgenses,




ARCO LEAEING LIMITED

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MOTES FORMING FART OF AGCOUNTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGH 3, 2034

5 Lnuidity vis k man agameant

Lizindity nak me'sre o the nak o hrancs) delrses of exraarEnary igh rancng soes anaing due To aheraps = gad “unda o a sueson Wiene tuanass sentiana
wnexpsredly dsTenorate and maurng hrancng. Libmate resgsn@eiity tor sty red managemsit reats wioh the beand of dingcters e Gompany manages boaists nek ey
WeINBINg raasryes and Rankng Bolnea, by soronucusy mencenng ferscaet end acsl caah evwe, and by matching “he matunly preies o hnengal sssate and lsgilnes

Ihz follzeng mkles dzmail the Coinpany s iemaining conmeciuel matunty far is inanca | iabihzs wath agreed repaymct penzds 8nd is hnanoial as5073. 1he sabics hawve bezin
orawn Up baszd anthe undscounzd cash 1ovs o “nancal s bilbecs beszd on Bz 2edizss 387 anvdueh he Sampgeny can ko oenuined 0 pay 1z fmikes incude both itsess

and prnzpal cash Cioes

o the Dxens That M st ‘s A toaTng rabe, the undiazauraed amaunt s d2resd Tom nesress A sunees et the end ot iz mpenng pened. e conTRcTLel atumy IE
beszd on the cadicst dabe onowhizh J1e Campany may be reqursd b pay

[¥_in lakhs}

Fartizulars 45 at March 31, Z024 As at March 17, 2023
< 1yoar 15 yoars| = & years | Total < ycar | 1-5ycars | = 5 yoars Total

Flnanclal agsats
lrrazglrenls Lidbny a4 EE FEFA | PRl
Trade Rumsvalbles
Cael gred Sagh Syuvalenls 0.5 ) L O.be Obe
Bank Sakanuee Dbes Than i Sove
Cilher Fingrsil A o 1.5 138 .24 [ET]
Total Ninanclal ageets Z1E.597 - - 21697 234.30 - - 231430
Flnanclal Hlabilldes
Trade Mayables i i HE EL51 HE1
Cither Finansil Lisbillivs s 2noon @un.n 2i0 0
Total inanclal Nakiides Z07.95 - - A07.95 Z08.61 - - Z08.61

20 Presizus e lpures bave Geen rearangesd Fesneoped sdigrevsr esessarny




ARCD LEASING LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ROTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGH 31, 2024

21 Belated Partv disclogure;
1 Relaled Party Transactizns

g per Aczaurting Standard 18 (A5-18) ' Raleted Farly Tranesotion', issuad by 1041, the diedosurs of trensactions with the related paries ae definad in

By List o R N .

a) b ey Compay;
1 #nsu Trade & Fiszals Frivare Limit=d
b)
1 Marendra Mahasir Ruiz
7 Regndra Mahavirprased Rua
S Faushik Kardilal Shah
4 Brikar Gagelran
5  Renulyes
B Transactions durng the Year with Related Partias; {Rs. In Lacs)
- Key Management
Partinulars Subsidiary Company Personnel JTotal
202324 2022-23 023-24 022-23 Z023-24 2022-23
Cxpen=es Inourred on behalf of
Subsidisry A7 oD - - A7 200 FOLFED

2 Trade reeaivables Ageing Sehedula

Ax al ¥ March 2024 [R5, In Lazs)
Dulstanding for follvwing periods from due dale of payrment
Parficulars Wotdue [ pga than g & months— 1 year | 1-2 yesrs 73 years More than 3 Taotal
- |Menths YRR
Undsputad Traze Raceivablas -
caneldarsd oo
Unehsputad Trase Raceivablas - - - - - - -
whizh hava gigniicant inoresss
in credit sk _
Unehsputad Trase Raceivablas - - - - - - -
crazit irmpained _
Cispatad Trede receivebles - - - - - - -
cansidered pood
Clspdhad Treds recelvables - = - - - - -
whizh hawve significant incre ass
[in creht risk -
Clapiad Trede Ressvellas - - - - - - -
cansidered doubiiul -
Total (Al - - - - - - -
Allzesance for eepactad creditloss -
Total (A= B} = - - - - - .
Feason for
23| Ratio Numerator Denominatar JU0IZ024 J1i0G/2023 | % change vani
Currznt raia Cureni Ageets currant Liabilifies T.EEH ] 1% |Mo significent changs
| Cualit- Eguite Fatis Totwl Oekd Sharshold=r's Eguin- B B (o -
Calt Serdoa Cavarads retla Earnings 1rdabd sardss = |Call sandos = Infareet & Lesss - - % -
Het pratt afar teeas + Man- | Peyments + Frincial Bapasants
cash operaing expenses _ _
Mebarn on Couity ratio Met Praiits affer fzoes — Sumrage Sharehalders Cquity 51 27 28A% | Mo inzarms i G F as
Freferznze Dividend compared {3 PY
Inwn‘h:hrr Turraver rabiz gt of gnada el Av‘emga Irréaniary - - - -
Trads Rzozivable Tumover Ratia |Wet credil sales = Gross Sumrage Trade Rez=ivable Ha [ - -
credif sales - sales relum
Trads Payabls Turnzwar Ratio Met cradit purchases = Sverage Treds Pavabias HA L8 - -
Cross zredit purchases -
purchazs reirn
Mat Capltal Tunweer Ratdo ket males = Tatal sales - Wdarking capifal = Currant assets — B - (el Toos e inzame in Sy as
feurrert labilies compared 1 BY
Het Prafitratia Met Pratit Hat seles = Tofsl erlos - sales - M.AZH - [Mainzamein GY as
l"&tIJ_I'I"I cauivprared 13 P.Y
Ratdrn an Captal Ernploved Earnings E=fore inderest and |Capitel Emplzyed = Tangible Met B 535 1 oo Mo inzame in SV as
taas Warth + Total Cabt + Deterrad Tax carpared 1a By
Liakility
@Jrn o e esdmsnt II'@[BSTI{FIIEHL‘:B |Fcame] Invaeinmsnt HA HA - -




24 Compliance with approved Scheme(s] of Arrangements
The company diz not fave any sush @Tangements in the cumant yesr

6 Diselosura of Transactions with Struek off companies
Thie Gorparny dd not heve ary maiorisl ransactiane vith compenies sirack off under Secfion 248 of ihe Companias A, 202 or Sactian

05 Mo fransactions fo report against the following disclosure requirements as nofified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule iz
L) Crypto Cumansy or ViFual Qurrensy
+b) B=nami Property held under Prohibition of S=nami Property Transactizns &, 1858 and rules made thereunde=r
i)y Registration st chenges or sefisfactizn with Regismar of Companas
o) Redating 12 borawed fuade.
i Wl defauter
ii. Utlizaian =f Ezmawed funds & share premium
Il Barrasings abdalned an te Bz of sacunty of curmant asssts
iv. Dizorepancy in utlizadizn of borroedings
w. Currart raturity of lang tarm borrasings

Ax per our report of even daie
For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors
For M.C.ulain & CO
Chartersd Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, : 304012E

Rajendra Ruia Harendra Ruia  Renu Wyas
CA Varsal Gohil Whle Tima Direchor Diregtor & CFD  Company Seeretary
Partner DIr:01 300823 DIN:D1228312 Mo, ABSZT
Membership Ne.: 145050 Placze: Mumbai
Place: Murnbai Date: 23-May-2024

Dale: 23-May-2024



ARCOQ LEASING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Mote No. As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
ASSETS
Won Current Assets
Froperty, Plant and Equipment 2 273 273
Other Mon Current Assats 3 1.73 024
4.46 247
Current Assets
Financial Assets
[vestments 4 1873 17.46
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 6289 4068
Loans g 176.00 175.00
Cther Financial Assets T 1525 287
27267 236.01
TOTAL ASSETS 277.13 238.28
EQUITY AND LIAEILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital & 24.01 24.01
Other Equity g [83.06) {44.03)
(59.04) (20.02}
Liabilities
Current Llabllites
Finanecial liakilities
Trade Payables 10
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
entarprises - -
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
entarprizes and small enterprises 857 218
Other Financial Liakilities 11 311.00 200,00
Other Current Liakilties 12 1553 48,75
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 0452 052
Frovisions 14 0,35 0,58
336.17 252.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 277.13 238.28
Significant Accounting Polivies 1
(Motes forms intagral part of Accounts)
A= par our report of even date
For M.C JAIN & CO, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For Arco Leasing Ltd
Firm Registration No, : 304012E
Vatsal Gohil Rajendra Ruia Marendra Ruia Renu Yyas
FPartmer Yihole Time Director  Director & CFD Company Secretary
Membership Mo, 146059 DIM 01300823 DIM: 228312 h.no, AE342T

Flace: Mumkbai
Date; 23-May-2024

Flace: Mumkbai
Date; 23-May-2024




ARCOQ LEASING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note No, For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 in lakhs T inlakhs
Revenue
Revanue from Dperations 14 85 21.07
Other Incorme 13 1.28 113
Total Income 16.13 22.20
Expenses
Employee Cost 093 -
Other Expansas 16 54 22 12.86
Total Expenses 5515 12,56
Profiti{Loss} from ordinary activities before tax (38.03} 5.37
Tax expense
Current Tax - (.28}
Profiti{Loss) after tax {39.03} 7.06
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Coamprehenslve Income (comprsing loss and other
comprahansive income} (39.03) 7.06
Basic & Diuted Earnings per Share of T 10 each 17 [16.25) 2.84

Significant Accounting Folicies
(Motes forms integral part of Accounts)

As perour report of even date

For M.C.JAIN & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration M. ; 304012E

Vatsal Gohll

FPartner

Membershlp No.: 145605%
Flace: Mumkai

Date: 25-May-2024

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Arco Leasing Ltd

Rajendra Rula MNarendra Rula Renu Vyas
Yihole Time Director  Director & CFO Company Secretary
DIM:01300823 DIN:O1228312 M. no. ABS4ZT

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 23-May-2024



ARCOQ LEASING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
T in lakhs Tin lakhs
Zash Flow From Operating Activities
Frofit before taxation {35.03) 234
Adjustment for:
Met Loss [ (Gain} on sale of Investment - -
Fair Walue changes in Mon Current Investments (1.28} 113
Interest incomea (14.85) 12073
Balance Writlen off - -
Operating Cash Flow before working capital changes (55.15) 6.14
Adjustment for:
(Increase)Decrease in Receivables - -
(I ncrease)Decrease in Current Assets and Financial assets {13.38} i1.87)
|ncrease | (Decrease) in Fayables and Financial liakilities 277 13.83)
Zash generated from operations (41.36) 0.44
_ess Tawes on Incorme [PaidyRefund (Met) (1.45) 12100
MNet Cash generated from / {used in) Operating Activities {42 85} {1.66)
Zash Flow From Investing Activities
Furchase of Investments (including advances) - -
| nterest | ncome 14.85 207
Loans given during the year - (185.00}
Froceeds from Sale of Investments - -
Met Cash used from Investing Activities 14.85 [162.93)
Zash Flow Fram Financing Activities
Redemaption of preference shares {200.00)
Froceeds from issue of shares 250,00 -
MNet Cash generated from Financing Activities 50.00 -
Metincrease f [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22.00 [164.59)
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the vear 40.658 205.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning on consolidation MNA NA
Zash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 62.68 40.68

Mote: The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Methed' as set cut in the Indian Accounting Standard

(Ind A5} 7 on Cash Flow Statament.
As perour report of even date

For M.C.JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, : 304012E

Vatsal Gohil

Partmer

Membership No.: 146059
Flace: Mumioai

Date: 23-May-2024

Rajendra Ruia
Vihole Time Director
DIrM:01300823
Place: Mumbaj
Date: 23-May-2024

Faor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Arco Leasing Ltd

WNarendra Ruia
Directar & CFO
DI -01228312

Renu Vyas
Company Secretary

M.no. AB9427




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Z in lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 24.01
Changes in share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 24.01
B. OTHER EQUITY

(% in lakhs}
As at March 31, 2023 {51.09)
Profitfiloss) for the year 7.06
Qfher Comprehansivea Income -
As at March 31, 2024 (44.03)
Profitiloss) for the year (39.03})
Cther Comprehensive Income -
Total (83.06)
As per aur report of even date
For M.C.JAIN & CO. Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For Arco Leasing Ltd
Firm Registration Mo. ; 304012E
\ratsal Gohil Rajendra Ruia Marendra Ruia Renu Vyas
Partner Whole Time Director  Director & CFG Company Secretany
Memhbership No.: 146058 CIN:01 300823 DIN:O1 228312 M.no. AGE427

Place: Mumbai
Crate; 23-May-2024

Place: Mumbai
Date; Z3-May-2024



ARCO LEASING LIMITED
Significant Acccounting policies and Notes forming part of the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended March 31, X024

2.1

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Bazls of preparation

The finanzial statemants of the Company have been praparad in accordance with Indian Accourting Standards {Ind AS) natified undar section 133
of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {Indian Accourting Stsndards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provision of the Act A summary of
the impartant accountng policizs which have besn applied consistently is s2t out below

{ij. Basis of Accounfing ! Consolidation:

2.2

2.3

x4

a) The financial statemants of the Company are preparsd under the historical cost convention on an accmial basia of accounting in accordancs with
the gerarally scsepled accountng prindples, and apphcable Accounting Standards on consistent Basis.

b} The consclidatad financial statements incorperate the finsncisl statements of the Company and ite subeidiaries on line by line basis by adding
togather like items of agsets, liabiliies. Incoms ard expensas By using unifemm accounting pelicies. The difference betveen te cost of investmant
and the Company's portion of equity in subsidiaries. at the date of Irvestrment. is reated a= goodwill or capital reserve a5 a case may be. The
interest of minority sharsholders iz stated st the minenty's proportion of the assets and liabilities recognized

1 Al significant transactions and baknses between the company ard subsidiaies are elimirated on consolidation,

Slanifcant accountng udgements, estimates and assumptions

The praparation of inancial staternsrts requires management o make judoementz. eatiniates and assumptions that affect e reparted amounts of
revanues, expenses, assels and liabiities, and the accompanying disclesuras. and the disdasure of contingant liabilities. Uncertainty aboul these
sesumpticns and estimates could result in cutcomes that require 5 materal adjustment o the camying smount of assets or liakilities sfected in
futurs periods

The Company prepared its financial statements based on assumptions and 2stimates on paramaters available at that fims. Existirg cirsumstances
and assumptions about future developments. howewver, may change due to market changas or ciroumstances ansing that sre beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptiors when they ocour,

Fair value nieasureément of financial instruments

Fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an ae=set or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwean market participante at
the mgasurament date regardless of whether that price is directy cbserable or ssimated using another valuation teshnigus IR estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liabiity, the Company @kes into account the characteristics of the assat or liabdity i market participants swould take those
characteristics inte ascaunt when prcing the asset or kakiity at the measurament datz. Fair value far measurament andior disslosure purposes in
these financial ststemants ie detarmined on such a basis, excapt for share based paymart transactione that are within the scope of Ind AS 102,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind A5 17 and measuremants that have some similanities 1o fair value but are nat fair value, such
a2 net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value inuze in Ind A48 36

In addition, for financial reporting purposes. far value measurements are categonsed into Level 1, 2. or 3 basad on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair valus measurementa are obaervable and the =ignificance of the inpure to the fair value measuremant in its entirety, which are descrbed
as falloves

Lewal 1inputs are cucted prices {unadjusted) in astive markets foridentical assets or liabkilities that the entite can access at the maasurement date:
Lewal 2 inputs are inputs, othar than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are cbservabbe for the asset or liability. either directly or indiractly;
and

Lewal 3 inpute are unobesarvakble inputs for the assat or kability.

Income X
Tha income tax expaensa or cradit for the period s the e payable on the cument perod’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by charnges in deferred tax assets and liabilibies attributabls to temporary differences and to wunused Be losses,

The current incame tax charges is caloulated on the basis of the tax laws eracted al the end of the reporting penod in India. Management
pericdically evaluates posiions taken in the tae retums with respect o eifuaticns in which spplicsble tax regulations are eubjact to interpretaton
and establishes provisions whare appropriate

The camying amount of defamed tax aazets iz reviewed at each reporiing date and redused o the extent that it iz no kbnger probsble that suffident
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defemred tax azzetto be utilized. Unrecognized defemed tax as=msts are re-aasessed at each
reporting date and are racognised to the extant that it bas become prebable that future taxable profits will allow the deferrad tax asset to be
racoverad.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and conflingent assets

Pravizionz are recognised whan the Company has a prezent kegal or constructive oblication. a2 a reault of past everts, and it iz probable that an
autflowr of rezcurces. that can reliably be estimated. will b2 required to settle such an obligation. i the effect of the fima valus of monay iz material,
provisiens are detarmined by discounting the expected future cash flows o nat presant value using an appropriste pre-tas discount rate that
reflacts current market assessments of tha time wvalue of money and. where appropriste. the riske specific to the liability. Urrwinding of the discount
5 racognised in the statement of profit and loss as afinance cost Provisions ars reviewed at sach balance shest date and are adjustad to reflect
the currant bast astimata.

Contingznt habilitiez are not recognized but disdozed where the evistence of an obligation will anly be corfimed by future events or whers the
ameount of the abligation cannct be measured reliably. SContingsnt assels are not recognised, but are disclosed wherz an inflow of economis
benefits is probable.



ARCO LEASING LIMITED
Significant Acccounting policies and Notes forming part of the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended March 31, X024

2.5 Financial instruments
A finanoial inetrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial aseet of cne entity and a financial liakility or eguity instrument of another artity.

{i} Financial assets

All financial aazets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the casze of financial aseets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
tramaaction coats that are attributable to the acquisition of the finarcial azest Transaction coste of financial assste camed at fair valus through
prefit or kogs are expensed in prefit and loss.

Subeeguant measuremant of debt instruments depernde on the Company’s businese model for managing the assets and the cash flow
characterigtics of the agsets. Thers are thres measurement categaries inte which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortlsed cost Assets that are hald far cellzction of contractual cash flows where those cash flovs represent solely paymant of pincipal and
interest {5PP1) are measured at amortisad cost After initial measuremant, such financisl aseate are subsequentty messured at amortieed cost
uging the effective interest ratz (EIR] method, Amortised cost is calcukatad by taking inta account ary discount oF pramium on acquisition and fees
ar costs that are an intzgral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other incomes in the prafit or loss The losses ansing fram
impairmment are recogrised in the profit or loes.

Falr value through other comprehensive Income (FYOCI). Assets that are held for cellection of contractual cash flows and for seling the
sseets, whare the aesets’ cash flows represant eclely paymant of principal and intareet (SPFI), are measwred st fair value through other
somprehensive incame, Fair value movements are recognised in the other compreharsive income, except for the recagnition of impaimmsnt gains
ar ksses, interest income and foreign exchange gain and logses which are recogrised in profit and loss When the financial assets is
derecognised. the cumulatve gain or loss previously recognised in QCl s reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial azzets i included in other income uging the efective interest rate mathod

Fair value through profit and lass (FVPL): Asssts that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FWOC] are measured at fair value through
prafit ar less, Debt insturments included within the FYPL categery are measured at fair valuz with all changes recagnized in the statemrent in prefit
and less. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effectve interest rste method.

Al gquity investments in scope of Ind-A5 108 are messured at fair value, Equity irstrurments which are hald for rsding ame classified as at FWVPL.
Far all other equity ingtruments, the Cormpany may dazsify the same either az st FYTOC! or FWPL. The Company makea such alection on an
insrument-by-irstumant bagis. The classfication is macde an initial recognition and is imevocable,

Equity instrumeants which are dassified as FWOCL all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividerds. sre recognized in the GCIL There
is no racyding of the amounts from G to profit and kess. even on galke of investment. However. the company may ransfer the cumulative gain or
loza within equity. Equity inztnuments induded within the FYFL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profic or lnss

Impalrment of fihancial assets
The Company assesses on & foreard looking basis the expected crodt losses assccated with its assets camied at amorised cost and FWOC] debt
instruments.  The impaiment methedology applied depands on whether there has been a significant incresss in cradit sk,

The Company apphas the “simplified appreach’ for recegnition of impaimmeant loss allvwance on rade eervables. The application of simplifizd
approach does not require the Company to rack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognies impairmeant lose allcwance based on lifetinme Expectad
Credit Losses" (ECLY at 2ach reporting date right from its initial recacnition.

Far recognifion of impaiment loss on other financial assets and nisk exposura, the Company deterrmines that whether there has been a significant
increass in the credit isk since initial recognition. ¥ credit rizk haz not increased significantty. 12-4worth ELL i uzed to provids for impaiment loss.
Howeaver, if credit fisk has increased significantly, lifetire EGL s used. I in 2 subseguent pened. credit guality of the instrument improvas such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit ek since initial recognition. then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loes allowance
bas=c on 1 Z4manth ECL

Lifetima ECL are the expected cradit Inazes resulting from all pozsible default eventa over the expected life of a financial instrunnent. The 12-month

ELL iz a parfion of the lifetime ECL which reaulte from default everts on a financial irstrument that are possible within 12 monthe sfter the reporing

data, ECL is the differencs between all canfractual cash flows that are dus 1o the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash floves

that the entity expects to receive {i.e., all cash shertfslle), discounted attha original EIR. When estimnating the cash flowes. an entity is required o

sonsider

= Al contractual termes of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension. call and similar options)] over the expected life of the financial
instrumant Howewar, in rare cazes when the evpestad life of the financial irstrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity iz required o
uza the remairing corfraciual tamn of the financial inefument.

= Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit entancements that are integral to the contrachial terms

ECL impainment loss allowanoes ar revarsal] recognized curing the pericd is recagnized as income! expense in the statament of profit or loss, This
amount is reflected in a =sgparate line in the profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

{ii} Financial liabilities
All financial liakliies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case af lcans ard borrovings and rade and payables. net of directly
attriburable fransaction coste. The messurement of inancial liabiliies depends on their classificstion, ae described below:



ARCO LEASING LIMITED
Significant Acccounting policies and Notes forming part of the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended March 31, X024
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2.8

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilitizs at fair value through profit o lass indude financal liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loes. For lisbilities designatad as FWFL, fair valua gained losses atfributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OC1L These gaine’ loss
are not subsequently transfermred to profit or lass. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. ANl cther changes
in fair value of such hability are recognised in the staternent of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilites cassified and measured at amoriized such as leans and borrowings, trade and other payabla are intally recagnized at fair
value, net of ransaction cost incurred. After initial recognition. financial liakilitize sre subssgquently measwred at smortised cost using the Effective
interzst rate (EIR] methad, Gains and lesses are recogrissd in profit or loss when the liakilities are derscogrissd as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost s cEloulated by wking into account any discount or premium on acguistion and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorization iz includad as firanse coste in the amaterment of profic and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liakility is
replaced by anather from the same lznder on substantially differsmt termns. or the temvs of an existing lability are substantially medified, sush an
axchange or modification is treated as the de-recogribion of the original liability and the recognition of & new liabidity. The difference n the
reapective camying amounts s recognized in the statemant of profit or loze

Tha company has not charged any depreciation for the current year the balance in the fixed assat represant the scrap valua of the seset at the time
of sale as per e provisions contaired in companies act, 2013

Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hard. shert-temn deposits with banks with enginal matunty of k2es than three months and
short-term Righly liguid investments. that are readily corvartible inte cash and which are subject o insignificant nsk of changes in the principal
amount. Bank overdrafts, which are repayakble on dernand snd form anintegral part of the oparations sre included in cash and cash equivalants.

Eartilngs pet share

Basic samings par share are computed by dividing the profit £ (loss] by the weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding during the year.
Eamings congiderzad in aacertsining the Company’s eamings per share are the profit | (loza) for the vear after deducting prefarence dividends and
attributakble taxes atmbatable to aquily sharehalders, The weighted average number of esuity shares cutstanding duning the vear and for all years
presentad is adjustad for events, such as bonus shares, ather than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of
eojuity shares outetanding, without 8 corresponding changs in resourcas.

Far the purpese of caleulating dilted eamings per share, the profit ! {less) for the year are adjusted for the effects of changes in income,
axpansas. tax and dividends that would have ocourmed had the dilutive potential equity shares been converted into squity shares. Such adjustmeants
after taking account of tay include preference dividends ar other t2ma rzlated o convertible preference shares interest on convertible debt and
any other changas in income or expense that would result from the conversion of dilutive potential ordirary shares. The weightad average numibear
af shares autstanding <during the yearis adjustad far the effects of all dilutive potantial equity shares.



ARCO LEASING LIMITED

Significant Acccounting policies and Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended March 31, 2024

2 Property, Plant and Equipment

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T i lakhs Tin lakhs
Gaodwill an Censalidation 273 272
2.73 273 |
3 Non Current tax assets (Net)
Ax at As at
March 31. 2024 Ma_rl::h 11, 2023
¥ in lakhs Fin lakhs
Income Tax 1.7 0.1
Mat Credit Entilernant a0 oo2
TOTAL 173 024
4 Investments - Current
As at As at
March 31, 2024 Margh 31, 2023
Tin lakhs Tin lakhs
Current Investments
Imvestrnents in Mubuzl Funds
12,758 592 units LT Dynamic Band Fund - Regular Growth Plan 1873 1746
Total 18,73 17.46
& Cash and Cash Equivalents
As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Tin lakhs 3 inlakhs
L-ashin hand am 0.0
Balanca with Bank in Current Accounts 5260 40 .52
Total 62.68 40.68
B Loans
Az at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tin lakhs Tin lakhs
Loan to Others 175.00 175.00
Total 176.00 175.00
7 Other Financial Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024 Margh 31, 2023
Fin lakhs Fin lakhs
Intarast Racaivable 15.25 287
Prepeid Expenzes - -
Total 1525 287
— —




ARCO LEASING LIMITED

Significant Acccounting policies and Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024

B

]

10

Equity Share Capital
As at As at
March 31. 2024 Ma_rl::h 11, 2023
Tin lakhs 3 inlakhs

Authorized Capital®
3.000.000 Equity Sheres of 10 each A00.00 300.00

I00.00 30000
Issued . Subscribed & Fully Paid up Capital
240,070 Equity Shares af 710 each 2401 7d 01
Total 24.1 24.01

— ———

* Tatel suthorised capitzl including Curmnulstive Redesmable Preference Sheres - ¥ 600
M otas:
a. Recongiliation of the number of shares and amourt outstanding &t the beginning and

Lakhs

at the and of the year:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

| humbers Zin lakhs humbers Tin lakhs
Equity Shares
Balanez at the beginning of the yaar 2.40.070 24,01 240.070 z4.01
Is=ued during the year - - -
Balanca at the end of the yaar 2 40070 24.01 240,070 =4.01
b. Details of sharsholders helding more than 3% shares in the company ¢
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Murmbers ki Murmbers T
Shri Marendra Ruia 41135 6. 74% 40135 1E.74%
Brt. Sarita Ruia 410 6. 42% 24410 1B5.42%
Shri Rejendra Ruia 18.085 B.70% 18085 B.700%,

. Righis, preferences and restrictions attached to shares: The company has ane class of equity shares of face value of T 10 2ach.
Ewery sharehabkler is entitled to ane vote for every shares held. In the event of liguidation the equity sharehalders shall be entitled

o receive remaining assats of the company after distribution of &l dues in proportion of

their holdings.

d. In preceding five years the campany has nat allotted any shares without payment being received in cash and it has nat issued

benus shares or baught back zny shares

Other Equity
Az at As at
March 51, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tin lakhs T in lakhs
Retained Eamings
Balance at the baeginning of the year (44 02 (51.06)
Add: Profit?loss,) for tha vear {33.03) 708
Balanca at the end of the yaar {B3.08) (44 .03)
Total {B3.06 ) {44.03)
Trade Payables
As at As at
March 31. 2024 Ma_rl::h a1, 2023
Tin lakhs % in lakhs
Tradz pavables
Total putstanding dues of micro enterprizges and small enterprises - -
Totzl cutstanding dues of craditors ather than micr erterprises and small entempnisss 877 B15
Total B.¥FT B.15
—
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11 Other Financial Liabilities

12

13

14

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
TinlLakhs Tin Lakhs
250,000 0.01% Gurmulative Redesmable Preference Shares of 100 each 250,00 20000
Lzan taken from othars &1.00 -
Total 311.00 204,00
_ I

Notes:
al Autharized Capital:

Particulars

300,000 (P Y. Fill Gurnulstive Redesmabls Praference Shares of T 100 each

b} Reconciliation of the nurmber of shares and amount cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Prefarence shares

Belanca at the beginning of the yaar

Issued during the yvear

Less: Redeemed during the vear
Belsnca at the end of the yasr

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Numbers FinLakhs Humbers 3 in Lakhs
2000720 200,00 200,000 200.00
2500020 250,00 - -
(2 00.000] {200.00] - -
2 50 030 2a0.00 2 00 000 200 .00

) Detfais of sharsholders holding more than 5% sharas in the company

Prefarence shares

Essar Steel Matal Trading Ltd (2adier Edwedl
Infrastructure Hazira Ltd now amalgamatad)

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Mumbers T in Lakhs

Mumkbers

T inlakhs

2 50000 Z50.00

20200002

200.00

d] The preference shares ara redeemable st par on demand at the option of the helder and accordingly. disclosed under ather

financial liabilities.

Qther Current Liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 Ma_rch H, 2023
TinLakhs Zin Lakhs
Blatutory Liabilities v |- nov
Advarcs fam oters 11.83 4082
Total 1&53 44.75
Current Tax Liabiliies {Met)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
TinLakhs 7in Lakhs
Lurrant Incoma Tax Liskility (Mat) 0.52 0.52
Total 052 0.52
Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
finLakhs T in Lakhs
Thher Provisions .28 0.an
Contingant Provision Against Standard Assets .04 o.og
Total 0.35 0.58
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15 Other Income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in lakhs T in lakhs
Interast on depesits with bank -
Interast - -
Prafit on Sale of Investrents - -
Fair value Changes in Investmants 1,28 1.13
Total 1.28 1.13

16 Other Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2024

Mareh 31, 2023

T ir lakhs Tinlakhs
Audit fees 1.43 1.43
Advertisermant Expensas .82 074
Legal & Profegsional Fees 5165 10,47
Miscellaneaus Expanses - -
Prafessional Tax .03 0.03
Filing Feas, Rates & Taxes 023 018
Wzbsite Exp - -
[Total 54.22 12.66

17 Eamnings Per Share

Thera are no petential equity shares and hence the basic and diluted eamings per share are same. The caleulation af the basic and diluted eamings

per share is besed on following dats.

March 31, 2024

Margh 31. 2023

Eamings [FrofitLoss) after tax]
Wzightad average number of equity sharas for the purposs of caloulating sarmings per share

Basic & Diluted Famings per share of face valus of T 10 sach {T)

{38.03)
2401

[15.23]

703
24.01

2.54

1& The company daes nat have any commitmeant and cantingsnt lizkilites

1% As par Accounting Standard 18 {AZ3-18) 'Relsted Party Transaction'. issued by [CAl, the disclosura of transactions with the related partizs as dafined

in A3-18is given balow
A List of Related parfies and relaticnships:
a) igli H

Subsidiary Company:
1 Ansu Trade & Fiscals Private Limited

Key management Personnel
Marendra Mahavir Ruiz
Rajendra Mahavirprasad Ruia
Faushik Kantlal Shah
Srikar Gopalrao
Renu Wyas
Thers are na transaction with related paries an a consclidated basis

4]
1

L) B S P

20 The company has single business segrment of Investmeants.
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Financial instruments

1 Capital management
The Corpany maraoes 15 capital o endire that the Gampany @il Be abie o conlinue 3% a going concarn sahile eaxi veisiog he rebur o stakebolders troush the
opdimisalion of the debt and squily balance.

The capital struciure af the Corpany carsisls of net debt and tdal equity of e Campsany

The Gompany is nob subject io any sedermally imposed capital requirarents. The Gompary's beard of directors reviesss The capital structure oooan anmaal basis. The
finencial te up fior e corrgsny ars long term in naiure as it is in infrastructurs buginese. Therafore all newy capitsl requirsmerds sre duly discussed by the board of
directore. The Corrpery rmonitors it capital usng gearng ratio. which iz ret deot divided to tdal equity. Met debt indudse bomows nge leee ceeh end cash squivelants
ared othet Lk bl e,

2 Categories of Nnancial Insmuments

Particulars Az at March 31, 2024 [As af March 31 2023
Laming Fair Caming  |Fair
Anount gnnunt armaunt_ fameunt

Tin lakhs T in lakh=

Fi . i

Measured at amortised cost

Cagh and Cash Equivalents EZ5H B 6D 4063 A0.56

Jither Financial Asasts 1525 16.25 2.87 2.87

Total financial assets camied at amortised cost 7754 7.0 43,588 41,56

Fair Value through prafit and loss acceunt
Irvestmant in Muiual Funds 1873 18,73 1746 1745
18,73 18.73 17.46 1748

Fmancial iabilities
Mizasured al amortised cast

Trade Payrbles a.77 8.7 BAG 815
Jther Flancial Liabilitieg 311.00 311.00 200.00 20000
Fmancial iabilities measured at amortised cost HMEeTT HATT 20815 20815

Fair value hierarchy

Lewel 1 inpute are queted g cse (unadjusied) in aetive marksts for identicsl asssts orlizbilities that te entity can access ai the messuramms clate;
Lewval 2 input2 are inpute, other then quobed pricse induded within Levs| 1, thet era obesrvable for the seset o liakility, eitrer direcly or indireczly; and
Level 3 Inpubs are Unobeeryakls Inputs Tor the azest or lakdity.

The Tollowirg takle prasenls e Tair value maasurerent hierarcsy o inancdal assets and lakilities measurad a Tair value on recuricg bass

Particulars Az at March | A=z at March
3, S0E b I 0
Fair Walue Fair Walue
rEasLrament | msasuremen
|sing 1 uging

Cuated
2uoted pricee |prices in
inactve active
markets markets
' in kakka
FYTPL financial assets designated at fair value
Irnesatment in huiual Funds [gusied) 18.73 1746

3 Finamcial risk management objectives

The Gompany's Gongerate finance dapariment rronitoes and meanapse the financigl riska ralating to the oparatiors of the Corrgany through intsmal rigk reports which
aralyes he supoeures by dagres and megniude of riskez. Thees rieks include rrarcet nak (ind ud ng currency rek, imesset rate viek and other gice riak). credt ik end
ligidty Fesk.

4 Credit risk nmanagenient
Credit risk refars b e sk that @ counterpary Sl defaut omits canractual abligations resulling in irancial lass bt e Carmpamy. The Campany has adeoted a palicy af
arly daaling with creditvearify courtarparti es and obtaining suficient oo lsteral, whers approgriate, as a reans of rritigafing tha risk of financial loss from dafauls

Trade receivabliezg

Trads receiabizs mne st of o largs rumber of coetormens, spread acioss diverss Ihdustties and gecegraphical arsas, Ongolng ctedi! evaliation (@ perfarrned on the
Tinancial cordilian of trade receivable and, whers appropriale, credil guarantze ingorance cover s purchased. The oulstanding trade recaivables are reguad g rariiored
ard approprisha aelion is lwkan for collecdion of overdue rade recsivablas,
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Cash and bank balances

The credit risk ot lguld Tunds and athet bank deposts g imited bacase the colrergart s ars banks wit high credit-atings assigned By eenatonal cadt-rating

AgarGies

5 Liquidity risk management

Ligjuiciity fiesk refers to the sk of inanclal distrsss or scdraced nary high Tmancing cogts arlsrg doe 1o shorage of lould funcs na aboat on whete bus neas cond ors
unespachady detariarate and requiting iransing, Ultirmate resgoensibility for lguidity sk ranagemant rests with the beard of direcdors. The Sampaiy earages Hgaid by
risk By rraintaining reserves ard Banking facilities. by confinuous y menitering ferecast and aelugl cash lows, ard by ratching the maturily profiles of firarcial asselts

and ligkilitias.

The Talloding lables detail the Corpany's rermaining somiractiual maiunty Toe ik Toaecial Habilities sdth agreed repayrment peiods and its Tiancial assels The takley
have been dravn up based on the undiscountad cash Aows of frarcial liakilites based on ta eadiest date on which the Gempany can ba required e pay. The ables

irelude bBadhirterest and principal cash oo,

To the selent that inberest iows are fieating rate, the undiscounbad ameent s derived fom irderest rate ourves &t the end of e regoding peiced. Tha conraciual
rrzburily is based an The earliest date on which the Somrpary may be reauired to pay.

{T in lakhs}

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 A5 atMarch 31, 2023
= 1year|1-5 years|> 5 years Total =1year [1-5years|> 35 years| Tetsl

Financial assets
Irveatments 1873 1573 17 44 17 44
L.ash el Caeh Equivalants EZ GA - - EZBS 40 5R - - 4058
Cithar Financial Azasts 15,26 - - 15.25 =87 - - 2.87
Total financial assets 9667 - - 9667 &1.01 - - &1.01
Fmancial iabilities
Trade Payrbles aTT BIT 815 B15
Cithar Firancial Liabilitiss 311.00 31e0 NG00 20000
Total financial liabilites ERENE - - METT 208,15 - - 208,15
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PILICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSQLIDATED ACCOUNTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

22 These consolidated finzndal satements induds inancials of 100% subsidiary companiss vie. Anse Trade & Fiscals Pyt Ll whoss financ al yaar gndad an Warch

31, 2034
23 Additional informstion s requirsd uncer Schedula [l o The Companiss Act, 2013:
[Mame o the antity Mot Assets Share In Profit) {Losd} Met Asguts Shate Ih Profitf {Lass)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
a5 % of Amount as % of Amount &) as % of Amount {F) as % of Amount (¥}
Consolidated (L4} Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
Net AsseEs Profit i/ {Loss) Net Assets Profit / {Loss)
|Farent
frco Leasing Lid. 205.70% -  55.91 E2.50% G.54 110.14% {22.059) 31.59% {12.23)
Subsidiarles - Indlan
A Trade & Fissals Pyt Lid., -105.70% 25.73 7.50% 0.53 -10.14% 2.03 5H.41% {25.700
AE par our rsport of even date
For M.C.JAIN & CO, For and on behalf of the Eoard of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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